








































































'I 
SVD & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

503, Ashok Sankul - II, Range Hill Road, Pune - 411 007 
Ph. : 8484035465, E-mail: deulkarcs@gmail.com  

I 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T  MARCH 2022 

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141 

To, 

The Members, 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, 

'Emcure House', T-184, M.I.D.0 Bhosari, 

Pune-411026. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited bearing CIN: 

U24231PN1981PLCO24251 (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31g  March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st  March, 2022 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time (the Act) and the rules made 

thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (`SCRA') and the rules made thereunder to the 

extent applicable considering the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) by the Company; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent 

of the securities held in dematerialized form; 
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowing and Overseas Direct 

Investment; 

(v) None of the Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') are applicable to the Company except the following Regulations, to 

the extent applicable considering the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) by the Company:- 

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 

(vi) The Management has identified and confirmed the Compliances of the following laws as 

specifically applicable to the Company:- 

a. The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 and rules framed there under 

b. The Bio Medical Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2016 

c. The Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable Advertisements) Act, 1954 

d. The Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985 

e. The Essential Commodities Act, 1955 and The Drug and Price Control Order, 2013 

f. The Petroleum Act, 1934 

g. The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 

h. The Patents Act, 1970 

i. The Trade Marks Act, 1999 

j. The Indian Copyright Act, 1957 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued 

by 'The Institute of Company Secretaries of India'. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition ofthe 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out incompliance 

with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and in case of shorter notice, the meeting is 

convened with necessary quorum and in presence of Independent Director and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
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All decisions at Board Meetings,Committee Meetings and by way of circular resolutions of Board and 

Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite majority, as recorded in the minutes of the 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events / actions having a major 

bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 

guidelines, standards, etc. except following: 

1. Avet Lifesciences Limited (Avet) ceased to be subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. July 25, 2021 
(Effective date) by virtue of Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger). Consequent to 

thisdemerger the US business of the Company got transferred and vested with Avet. As a 

result all the entities under Avetceased to be subsidiaries of the Company. 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company approved the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) 
for the Initial Public Offer of Equity Shares of the Company in their meeting held on July 27, 
2021 and the same was filed with SEBI on August 18, 2021 pursuant to the provisions of SEBI 

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2018. 

3. The Company had incorporated a step down subsidiary in Croatia on August 23, 2021 
through its wholly owned subsidiary Emcure Pharma UK Limited in Europe in the name and 

style of Tillomed d.o.o. 

4. Emcure NZ Limited ceased to be subsidiary from October 13, 2021 upon closure. 

5. The Company had incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Canada in the name and style 

of Emcure Canada Inc. on July 14, 2021 and the same was amalgamated with Marcan 
Pharmaceuticals Inc., a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. August 13, 2021. 

6. At the 40thAnnual General Meeting held on July 30, 2021, Special Resolutions were passed 
for: 

i. Reappointment of Mr. Satish Mehta as a Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company for a period of 5 years with affect from April 01, 2022 not liable to retire by 
rotation. 

ii. Appointment of Mr. Sanjay Mehta relative of Mr. Sunil Mehta, Whole Time Director of 
the Company, to hold an office or place of profit as President Commercial or any other 

designation and the role which Board or Committee of the Board may decide from time 
to time on such remuneration and other terms and conditions as agreed between Mr. 
Sanjay Mehta and the Company. 

iii. Continuation of Mr. Shreekant Bapat as Non-executive Independent Director of the 
company who has attained the age of 75 years and the resolution to be in force even 
after listing. 

iv. Increase in the authorized capital of the Company from INR 2,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees 
Two Hundred Crores Only) divided into 20,00,00,000/- (Twenty Crore) equity shares of 
INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to INR 2,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred and Fifty__.  
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Crores Only) divided into 25,00,00,000/- (Twenty-Five Crore) equity shares of INR 10/-

(Rupees Ten Only)and consequent alteration to clause V of the Memorandum of 

Association of the Company. 

v. Alteration of the existing set of Articles of Association of the Company by replacing it with 

new set of Articles of Association. 

vi. Approving an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the Equity Shares of the Company. 

vii. Adoption of amendments to the Emcure — Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2013 (ESOP 

Scheme) to ensure that the scheme is in compliance with the applicable SEBI Regulations. 

viii. Extension of the benefits of ESOP Scheme to the permanent employees and their eligible 

Directors of the Subsidiary Companies from time to time on such terms and conditions as 

set out in the Scheme and the resolution to be in force even after listing. 

ix. Authorization to Board of Directors to advance any loan including any loan represented 

by Book debt or give guarantee or provide security in connection with any loan taken by 

the entity which is the subsidiary or group company or associate or joint venture of the 

Company in which any Director is deemed to be interested for an amount not exceeding 

rupees 750 crore in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the 

Company, provided that such loans are utilized by the Borrowing company for its 

principal business activities. 

For SVD & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

SheetalSi. Joshi 

Partner 

FCS No: 10480 

CP No: 11635 

Place: Pune 

Date: May 04, 2022 

Peer review No. P2013MH075200 

UDIN: F010480D000257144 

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is annexed 

as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 
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'ANNEXURE A' 

To, 

Members, 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, 

Tmcure House', T-184, M.I.D.0 Bhosari, 

Pune-411026 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Management's Responsibility 

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise 

proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations 

and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures 

followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is 

adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

4. We have physically verified the documents and evidences and also relied on data provided on 

electronic mode to us. 

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

Disclaimer 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

7. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the Company 

For SVD & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Sheetal S., 

Partner 

FCS No: 10480 

CP No: 11635 

Place: Pune 

Date: May 04, 2022 

Peer review No.P2013M H075200 

UDIN: F010480D000257144 
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BS R& Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

8th floor. Business Plaza. 
Westin Hotel Campus. 
36/3-8. Koregaon Park Annex. 
Mundhwa Road. Ghorpadi, 
Pune - 411001. lndia 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Telephone: +91206747 7300 
Fax: +9120674773 10 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited (the "Company"), 
which com prise the standalone balance sheet as at 3 1 March 2022, and the standalone statement of profit and 
loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143( 10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by 

us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Emphasis of matter 

I. We draw attention to Note 41 to the standalone financial statements, which describes the uncertainty
related to the ultimate outcome of the Search and Seizure operation conducted by the Income Tax
Department. The Company has not received any demand notices in relation to the Search and Seizure as
at this date. Management is confident that no taxes will devolve on the Company and hence no provision
has been recognised in these standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2022. Though the Company
has not received any demand notice till date, the uncertainty in the matter remains till the proceedings are
concluded.

B S R & Co la partnership firm with Reg1sw:it1on No BA61223) r:onverted into B S R & Co LLP 
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BS R& Co. LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report- 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

Emphasis of Matter (Continued) 

2. We draw attention to Note 53 to the standalone financial statements regarding the Scheme of Demerger
between Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, Avet Lifesciences Limited and their respective Shareholders
('Scheme') which has been described in the aforesaid note. The Scheme has been approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal ('NCL T') vide its order dated 4 June 2021 with appointed date of I April 2021
and a certified copy has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, on 25
July 2021. In accordance with the scheme approved by NCL T, the Company has given effect to the Scheme
from the retrospective appointed date specified therein i.e. I April 2021 which overrides the relevant
requirements of Ind AS 103 (according to which the scheme would have been accounted for from 25 July
2021 which is the date of acquisition as per the aforesaid standard). The financial impact of the aforesaid
treatment has been disclosed in the aforesaid note.

3. We draw attention to Note 41 to the standalone financial statements which describes the uncertainty related
to the ultimate outcome of the lawsuit filed against the Company by HOT Bio Corp. ("HOT") in the United
States District Court - Seattle Division in the matter relating to the COVID vaccine being developed by
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited (a subsidiary of the Company). While the case is still in an early
procedural phase, the merits of HDT's claims cannot be fully assessed at this time and hence no provision
has been recognised in these standalone financial statements as at 3 l March 2022.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Other Information 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,,,felev.ant to 



BSR&Co.LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report - 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 
(Continued) 

the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section l 43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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BSR&Co.LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report- 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued) 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 ( 11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other

comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone

statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified

under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1 March 2022 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.



B SR& Co. LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report- 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B".

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the standalone
financial statements;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 43 to the Standalone financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) contain any material mis-statement.



BSR& Co.LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report - 31 March 2022 (Continued) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

e. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this
audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the

previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies
to payment of dividend.

As stated in Note 16 to the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the

Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the

members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid

by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section

197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under

Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under

Section 197( 16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

Place: Pune 
Date: 12 May 2022 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022 

�g-c__e.M 
Abhishek 

Partner 
Membership No. 062343 

UDIN: 22062343AIWMKN7695 



BSR&Co. LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 

2022 

With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph l in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements of the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone 

financial statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2022, we report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its

Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased

manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and

equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable

properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour

of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment

(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, and as represented to us by the management there are no proceedings

initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of

Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically

verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, 

written confirmations from major parties have been obtained and for goods-in-transit, subsequent 

evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such 

verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by management were 

appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the 

book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of

five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of

current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such

banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company except

as follows:



85 R&Co. LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 

2022 (continued) 

Quarter Name of bank Particulars Amount as Amount as Amount of Whether 

per books reported in difference return/statement 
of account the quarterly subsequently 

return/ rectified 
statement 

30 June 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Inventory 6,879.24 6,631.26 247.98 No 
Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 
State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

30 June 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Receivables I 0,885.99 9,295.00 1,590.99 No 
Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 
State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

30 June 202 I Bank of Baroda, Bank of Payables 4,223.53 2,565 39 1,658.14 No 
Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 
State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

30 September Bank of Baroda, Bank of Inventory 7,548.00 7,527.34 20,66 No 
2021 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

30 September Bank of Baroda, Bank of Receivables 9.073.17 9,502.73 (429.56) No 
2021 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

30 September Bank of Baroda, Bank of Payables 5,844.70 3,375.69 2,469,01 No 
2021 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

Stale Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

31 December Bank of Baroda, Bank of Inventory 7,461.27 7,257,16 204.11 No 
2021 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

31 December Bank of Baroda, Bank of Receivables 8,433.57 8,810.07 (376.50) No 
2021 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

31 December Bank of Baroda, Bank of Payables 5,659 42 3,606.96 2,052.46 No 
2021 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

31 March Bank of Baroda, Bank of Inventory 7,304.42 7,031.34 273,08 No 
2022 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

31 March Bank of Baroda, Bank of Receivables 10,090.92 10,512.99 (422.07) No 
2022 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

31 March Bank of Baroda, Bank of Payables 6,013.69 3,798.82 2,214.87 No 
2022 Maharashtra, Axis Bank, 

State Bank of India and 
Standard Chartered Bank 

Also refer note 47 to the standalone financial statements for details of the reasons for the differences. 



BSR&Co. LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 
2022 (continued) 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has made investments, provided guarantee or security

and granted loans, unsecured to Companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite

information is as below. The Company has neither granted advances in the nature of loans during

the year nor did it have opening balance with respect to the same.

(A) (a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has granted loans, or stood guarantee to subsidiaries as given below:

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans 

(Rs. In (Rs. In (Rs. In 

Millions) Millions) Millions) 

Aggregate amount during the year 

- Subsidiaries*
5,550.88 Nil 1,355.31 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 

- Subsidiaries*
4.301.81 Nil 1.066.18 

(b) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has granted loans, or stood guarantee to any other entity as given

below:

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans 

(Rs. In (Rs. In (Rs. In 

Millions) Millions) Millions) 

Aggregate amount during the year 

- Others
4,875.00 Nil 10.65 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 

- Others
4,355.41 Nil Nil 

*As per Companies Act, 2013

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made and the terms and conditions

of the grant of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of

the company.

(This space has been left blank intentionally) 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 

2022 (continued) 

(C) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of

principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been

regular. Further, the Company has neither granted any advances in the nature of loans during

the year nor did it have any opening balance with respect to the same.

(D) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect

of loans given. Further, the Company has neither granted any advances in the nature of loans

during the year nor did it have any opening balance with respect to the same.

(E) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has

been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given

to same parties. Further, the Company has neither granted any advances in the nature of loans

during the year nor did it have any opening balance with respect to the same.

(F) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the

nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of

repayment except for the following loans or advances in the nature of loans to its related parties

as defined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:

All Parties Promoters Related 

(Rs, in 
(Rs, in 

Parties 

Millions) 
Millions) (Rs, in 

Millions) 

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan

- Repayable on demand (A) 1,316.07 Nil 1,316.07

- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of Nil Nil Nil
Repayment (8)

Total (A+B) 1,316.07 - 1,316.07

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to the total 100.00% 100.00%
loans

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans and guarantees given by the

Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the

Act") have been complied with. The Company has not provided any security as specified under

Section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from

the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

.,.,1 

� J·a 

�
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements -31 March 

2022 (continued) 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules

prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148( I) of the

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of its manufactured goods and services provided by it and are of

the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine

whether these are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value

added tax during the year since effective 1 July 201 7, these statutory dues has been subsumed into 

GST. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, amounts deducted I accrued in the books of account in respect of 

undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax ('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' 

State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been 

regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few 

cases of Income Tax Deducted at source and Labour Welfare Fund. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of Goods and Services Tax ('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income­

Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 3 I March 2022 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, details of statutory dues relating to

Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of

Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute

are given in Appendix - I.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,

previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing 

or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used
for long-term purposes by the company.
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements -31 March 

2022 (continued) 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under
Companies Act, 2013. The Company does not have any associates or joint ventures

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries (as defined under Companies Act, 2013). The Company does not have any associates
or joint ventures

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on 
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of the audit 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

( c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 1 77 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the om pan

:.
.
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 
2022 (continued) 

(xvi)(a)The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank oflndia. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

( d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group
does not have a CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(vi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

Place: Pune 

Date: 12 May 2022 

ForB SR & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 101248W /W-100022 

0-J.kw � l-e.L<.

Abhishek 

Partner 

Membership No.: 062343 

UDIN: 22062343AIWMKN7695 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 

2022 (continued) 

Appendix -1 

Details of amount unpaid on account of disputes: 

Amount 
Amounts paid 

Name of Nature of the Period to which the under protest Forum where dispute 
(Rs. In 

statute dues amount relates* 
million) 

(Rs. In pending 

million) 

The Income Tax Income Tax AY 2014-15 ** 10.11 - Income Tax Appellate 

Act, 1961 Tribunal. Pune 

The Income Tax Income Tax A Y 2015-16** 7.54 - Income Tax Appellate 

Act, 1961 Tribunal. Pune 

The Income Tax Income Tax AY 2016-17 3.61 0.72 Commissioner of Income 

Act, 1961 Tax (Anneals) 

The Income Tax Income Tax AY2018-19 21.04 - Commissioner of Income 

Act, 1961 Tax (Anneals) 

is 

Orissa Entry Entry Tax 2005-06 and 2006- 1.15 0.34 Cuttack Sales Tax Tribunal 

Tax Act, 1999 07 

The Telangana Value added June 2014 to March 0.20 0.11 Telangana Appellate 

Value Added tax 2016 Tribunal 

Tax Act 2005 

The Tamil Nadu Value added FY 2014-15 28.65 - Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 

Value Added tax Appellate Tribunal 

Tax, Act 2006 

The Tamil Nadu Value added FY 2015-16 48.46 - Tamil Nadu Sales Tax

Value Added tax Appellate Tribunal

Tax, Act 2006 

The Gujarat Value added FY 2017-18 0.09 0.02 Deputy Commissioner 

Value Added tax (Appeals) 

Tax Act, 2003 

Central Sales Central Sales FY 2017-18 0.38 0.08 Deputy Commissioner 

Tax Act, 1956 Tax (Appeals) 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone financial statements - 31 March 

2022 (continued) 

Appendix -1 (Continued) 

Amount 
Amounts paid 

Name of Nature of the Period to which the 
(Rs. In 

under protest Forum where dispute is 

statute dues amount relates* (Rs. In pending 
million) 

million) 

Maharashtra Value added FY 2016-17 17.65 17.65 Joint Commissioner of 

Value added tax State Tax 

Tax Act, 2002 

Central Sales Central Sales FY 2016-17 1.70 1.70 Joint Commissioner of 

Tax Act, 1956 Tax State Tax 

Maharashtra Value added FY 2017-18 1.95 - Deputy Commissioner of 

Value added tax Sales Tax 

Tax Act 2002 

Central Sales Central Sales FY 2017-18 0.41 - Deputy Commissioner of 

Tax Act, 1956 Tax Sales Tax 

* A Y stands for Assessment Year and FY stands for Financial Year

** Income tax department has gone into appeal against the favourable order of Commissioner of Income

Tax (Appeals). 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's report on the Standalone financial statements of Emcure 
Pharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022. 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone financial 

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph '2(A)(t)' under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 

section of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Emcure 
Pharmaceuticals Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, 
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (the "Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter 
referred to as "the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143( 10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 



BS R&Co. LLP 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' report on the Standalone financial statements of Emcure 

Pharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Auditors' Responsibility (continued) 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that 
( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Place: Pune 

Date: 12 May 2022 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 0 I 248W /W-100022 

Q/2M2;teJA 
Abhishek 

Partner 

Membership No.: 062343 
UDIN : 22062343AIWMKN7695 



EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Assets 
Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
Right-of-use assets 
Intangible assets 

Financial assets 
i} Investments 
ii) Loans 
iii) Other non-current financial assets 

Income tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 

Total non- current assets 

Current assets 
Inventories 

Financial assets 
i) Trade receivables 
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
iv) Other current financial assets 

Other current assets 

Assets classified as held for sale 

Total current a.ssets 

Total assets 

Equity and liabilities 
Equity 

Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Total caultv 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease Liabilities 
iii) Other non-current financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease Liabilities 
iii) Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues to others 

iv) Other current financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Income tax liabilities (net) 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total eQuitv and liabilities 

Note 

2A 
28 
3 
4 

5 
6 
7 

36 
8 

9 

10 

llA 
11B 
12 

13 

14 

15 
16 

17 
3 

18 

19 
35 

20 
3 

21 

22 

23 
36 
24 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

10,999.32 
2,392.48 
1,558.79 

515.51 

5,633.59 
245.29 
269,55 

55.78 
201.02 

21,871.33 

7,304.42 

10,090.92 
309.23 
165.99 

1,834.48 

1,655.45 

-

21,360.49 

43,231.82 

1,808.52 
15,316.77 

17,125,29 

5,123.96 
828.50 
304.06 

212.35 
297.02 

6,765.89 

10,613.93 
86.58 

216.46 
5,797.23 
1,798.02 

232.55 
357.65 
238.22 

19,340.64 

26,106.53 

43,231.82 

Rs In million 
As at 

31-Mar-21 

10,859 95 
1,920,94 
1,306.56 

612,49 

8,637-31 
2,659.70 

264.41 

46,34 
169.67 

26,477.37 

6,217.74 

9,994.25 
2,455.58 

151.67 
2,080.49 

1,127.06 

127.80 

22 154.59 

48,631.96 

1,808.52 
21,209.20 

23,017.72 

6,459.74 
531.14 
273.44 

178.03 
280.09 

7,722.44 

9,574.11 
80.19 

17.35 
5,725.51 
1,544.95 

192.75 
341.58 
415.36 

17,891.80 

25,614.24 

48,631.96 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

A5 per our report of even date attached. 

ForBSR& Co, llP 
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

till).) �t._J---
Abhishek 
Partner 
Membership No. 062343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

For and on behalfof the Board o 
:)

ors 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Umlted 

�.;;r�
m 

�·:�::,ct., 
,,,E,, ... /4�' 
B�a� Taju alkh 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. F2922 

Place: Pune 
Date: 04-May-2022 

,ef Fin clal Officer 

12-May-2022



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Rs in million 
Particulars Note Vear Ended Year Ended 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
Revenue: 

Revenue from operations 25 33,872.42 31,074.13 
Other income 26 1326.81 965.21 
Total income 35199.23 32 039. 34 

Expenses: 
Cost of materials consumed 27 10,720.90 10,426.33 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 2,829.01 3,032.21 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade 28 (361.00) (1,079.63) 
Employee benefit expenses 29 6,039.45 5,439.18 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 1,657.92 1,542.08 
Finance cost 32 1,451.37 1,182.83 
Other expenses 30 6,697.35 5,855.92 

Total expenses 29,035.00 26 398.92 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 6164.23 5 640.42 

Exceptional items 33 - 45.25 

Profit before tax 6164.23 5 595.17 

Tax expense 34 
Current tax 1,687.18 1,416.48 
Deferred tax 8.94 (4.2.26) 
Total tax expenses 1 6 96.12 1374.22 

Profit for the vear from continuine ooerations 4468.11 4220.95 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
Loss from discontinued operations 53 (20.69) 
Tax exoense/(credit) of discontinued ooerations 53 - (4.49) 
Loss after tax from discontinued ooerations - 116 .20) 

Profit for the vear 4468.11 4 204. 7 5  

Other comprehensive income 
(a) In respect of continuing operations 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 44 (10.56) 1.47 
Income tax relating to these items 34 2.66 (0.37) 

(7.90 1.10 

(b) In respect of discontinued operations 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other comorehenslve income for the vear 17.90 1.10 

Total comorehensive income for the vear 4460.21 4 205.85 

Earnings per share: 
For continuing operations 
Basic 37 24.71 23.34 
Diluted 37 24.71 23.34 

For discontinued operations 
Basic 37 . (0.09) 
Diluted 37 . (0.09) 

For continuing and discontinued operations 
Basic 37 24.71 23.25 
Diluted 37 24.71 23.25 

I IFace value oer share: Rs.10 (Previous vear: Rs.loll 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

ForB SR & Co. LLP 
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

f1i 

�� J�J�.JA
Abhishck -·
Partner 
Membership No. 062343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

1\f�"'fz� Berjis Desa 
Director a Chairman 
DIN: 0015 75 

1:?n/z:: 

\ ,atl h Mehta 
M:,i1aging Dlrecto� 
DIN: 00118.691 

/2. 
. ·" 

,. 

Company Secretary �,'
alKn 

dal Otficer 
Membership No. F2922 

' 

Place: Pune 
Date: 04-Mav-2022 

-

12-May-2022



EMCURE PHARMACCUTICALS LIMITED 
Statement of Changes In Equity for the ,,ear ended March 31, 2022 

Eauitv share caoital 

As at April 1, 2020 
Chan�es in eauit" share caciital 
� at Match 3.l.. 2021 

[aultV sha,� n.nilal 

As at April 1, 2021 
Ch;mP.es in eauitv slure ca iuJ 
As at March 31, 2022 

Other equity 

As at April 1, 2020 

Profit for the year 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax) 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 
Final dividend on equity shares 

Others 
Employee share based expense 
Changes in foreign currency monetary item translation reserve 
Options forfeited 
Income tax on above 

tu: at Mru�h 31 2021 

Other equity 

As at April 1, 2021 

Profit for the year 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax) 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 
Interim dividend on equity Shares 
Final dividend on equity shares 

Others 
Employee share based expense 
Transfer to A vet Ufesciences Limited pursuant to demerger 
Cancellation of Investments and Loan given to Avet Lifesciences Limited pursuant to 
demer�er 
Changes in foreign currency monetary item translation reserve 
Options forfeited 
Income tax on above 

� a., Morch31 0 1 

Note: 
For description of nature and purpose of reserves refer note 16� 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached, 

ForB SR & Co. LLP 
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

Abhishek 
Partner 
Membership No_ 062343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

Note Its, Tnmtlllon 

1,808.52 
lS 

1 •os s2: 

Nolti R.1i. 11"1 tnnllon 

1,808.52 
IS 

1 sos_sz 

Note C-apJQJ reserve 

12.92 

16 

16 

45 
16 
16 
34 

ll-92 

Note Capital reserve 

12.92 

16 

16 
16 

45 
53 (1L52) 

53 (1.40) 

16 
16 
34 

(12.92) 

Ruerve..r and Surt1h.a 
Se<11rities Share options Gent:n.1 tUtfV0 Retained 
premium outstanding earnings 

account 

840.37 269.10 1,414.18 14,746.09 

4,204.75 
1.10 

4,205.85 

1).80..l!SI 
(180.85) 

34.20 

(186 06) 32.84 
18 881 

(151-86) 23,96 

84D.31 llJ.24 1. "1!18.14 18 77L09 

Securities 
pritmlum 

Share options General reserve Retained 

840.37 

(840.37) 

(840.37) 

outstandina 
account 

117.24 

57,18 

(15.19) 

4L99 

1S9.U 

1,438.14 

(964,72) 

15,19 
3..82 

(953,35) 

4B4.'19 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
CIN: U2423lPNl 1PlC02<2Sl 

B1:;zt� 
Companv Secretary 
Membership No. F2922 

Place: Pune 
Date: 04-t\by-20:::: 

earnings 

18,771.09 

4,468.11 
7.90 

4,460.21 

(361.70) 
180..85 

(542.55) 

(8.029 87) 

(8,029 87] 

146-Slf .. U 

foreign currenc.v 
monet.ary item 

translation 
reserve 

54.32 

. 

(33,251 

8.37 
(24,88) 

29.44 

Foreign, curr�.n<r 
mon•ta"'itC!m 

trao,:IHiOl'I 
rew.nrc 

29,44 

(20.81) 

5.24 
(15.57) 

J3.U 

Rt., lnm1111ran 

Tobi 

17,336.98 

4,204.75 
110 

4,205�85 

IJB0.85 
(180,85) 

34.20 
(33,25) 

(153.22) 
10 51 

(152.78) 

21 209.'20 

Rs. ln mllllon 

Total 

21,209.20 

4,468.11 
7-90 

4,460.21 

(361.70) 
180 85 

(542.55) 

57,18 
(9.846.48) 

(L40) 

(20.81) 

1.4 
(9,810. 09) 

1su&.n 

12-May-2022



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Rs in million 
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Profit before tax from continuing operations 6,164.23 5,595.17 
Profit/( loss) before tax from discontinued operations {20.69) 

Adjustment for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 1,657.92 1,562.35 
Unrealised exchange gain (58.49) (30.04) 
Finance costs 1,451.37 1,233.41 
Employee share-based expense 32.63 26.05 
Interest income from banks and others (13.14) (53.28) 
Interest income from intercorporate loans (77.94) {105.41) 
Net gain on loans given to subsidiaries measured at amortised cost {21.74) -

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.30) (6.15) 
Gain on termination of leases (0.12) (0.18) 
Dividend income (319.20) (159.60) 

8,814.22 8,041.63 

Working capital adjustments: 

- Increase in inventories (1,086.68) {1,781.12) 
- {Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (1,684.04) 1,388.68 
- Increase in other financial assets {12.83) (600.20) 
- (Increase)/ decrease in other assets (466.01) 144.95 
- Increase in trade payables 367.13 1,356.62 
- Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 34.17 18.59 
- Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities (48.21) 271.30 
- Increase in provisions 66.08 44.99 

(2,830.39) 843.81 

Cash generated from operating activities 5,983.83 8,885.44 

Income tax paid (net of refunds) (1,706.71) (1,136.73) 

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 4,277.12 7,748.71 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and capital work-in-progress (1,740.72) (878.55) 
Acquisition of intangible assets (133.62) (122.37) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale 31.95 23.05 
Purchase of shares of subsidiary {28.52) (4,705.28) 
Capital contribution in LLP (250.00) . 

lntercorporate loans given to subsidiaries (1,365.96) (3,130.60) 
Repayment of intercorporate loans by subsidiaries 1,147.46 230.65 
Interest received from banks and others 10.64 52.30 
Interest received on loans to subsidiaries 131.69 119.12 
Dividend received 319.20 159.60 
Term deposit placed (16.19) (530.21) 
Term deposit matured 4.10 470.65 

Net cash used in investing activities (BJ {1,889.97) (8,311.64) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayment of long-term borrowings (refer footnote 1 below) (3,005.04) (2,479.17) 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 722.52 5,748.07 
Proceeds/ (repayment) of short-term borrowings (net) 870.35 (1,464.35) 
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (161.17) (127.02) 
Interest paid (refer footnote 2 below) (1,313.72) (1,186.96) 
Interim dividend paid (361.70) -

Final dividend paid (180.85) (180.85) 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) (3,429.61) 309.72 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,042.46) (253.21) 
Cash and cash equivalent as at 1 April (ref.er b�low) (84_2.]6) 

-

(543.48) 

Transferred pursuant to composite scheme of 2rrangement (refer note 53) (2,050.00) -

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalent 1.86 (46.17) 
Cash and cash equivalent as at year end (3,933.46) (842.86) 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Rs. in million 
Components of cash and cash equivalent: 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Cash on hand 0.35 0.48 
Balances with bank in current accounts 308.88 2,449.02 
Demand deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) - 6.08 
Bank overdrafts used for cash management purpose (4,242.69) (3,298.44) 
Total cash and cash equivalent* (3,933.46) (842.86) 
• Cash and cash equivalent includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities Year Ended Year Ended 
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

Borrowings: 
Opening balance 12,925.94 11,159.16 
Amount borrowed during the year 722.52 5,748.07 
Amount repaid during the year (2,134.69) (3,943.52) 
Others (tncludes unrealised foreign exchange differences} 151.12 (37.77) 
Closing balance (refer note 17 & 20) 11,664.89 12,925.94 

Interest accrued on borrowings: 
Opening balance 78.04 60.52 
Finance cost incurred during the year" 1,451.37 1,233.41 
Amount paid during the year (1,313.72) (1,186.96) 
Others (includes borrowing cost capitalised during the year) (163.89) (28.93) 
Closing balance (refer note 22) 51.80 78.04 
"represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations. 

Footnotes to the cash flow statement: 
1. This includes prepayment of term loan amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. 659.30 million).

2. Includes interest expense of Rs. 91.93 million (March 31, 2021: Rs. 124.91 million) which has been capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23,
Borrowing Costs.

3. Refer note 3 for movement in lease liabilities.

4. Refer note 52 for corporate social responsibility expenditure paid in cash during the year.

5. Standalone Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

�� 
Abhishek 
Partner 
Membership No. 062343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
CIN: U24231PN1981PLC024251 

f WU: .. ;;,�; f � 
. 

I 
D;rectocaod""'"=" 
DIN: 00153675 

Company Secretary 
Membership No. F2922 

Plar'.!:·Pun" 
Date: 04-May�2022 

Chief Financial Officer 

12-May-2022



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lA. General information: 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Company") is a Public Limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in 
India. The Company has its registered office in Pune and is engaged in developing, manufacturing and marketing a broad range of 
pharmaceutical products globally. The Company's core strength lies in developing and manufacturing differentiated pharmaceutical 
products in-house, which are commercialised through Company's marketing infrastructure across geographies and business relationships 
with multi-national pharmaceutical companies. 

The Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Composite Scheme") for demerger of the Company's United States of America ('US') market 
business into Avet Lifesciences Limited, the Resulting entity, was approved by Honourable National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), 
Mumbai Bench vide its order dated June 04, 2021, formal order received on July 15, 2021. The said NCLT order was filed with the 
Registrar of Companies by the Company and Avet Lifesciences Limited on July 25, 2021, thereby making the Composite Scheme effective. 
Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of the US market business stand transferred and vested into Avet Lifesciences Limited on April 01, 
2021, being the Appointed date as per the Composite Scheme for the demerger of US market business. Both the entities are controlled by 
same promoters. 

lB. Basis of preparation 

a) Basis of preparation

i. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the 
Act as amended from time to time. 

The Company has considered the amendments to Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
("MCA") via notification dated March 24, 2021 in the standalone financial statements disclosures, wherever applicable. 

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note lC. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated. 

b} Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All the 
amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million, unless otherwise 
indicated. 

c) Basis of Measurement

The standalone financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the following items: 

Items 

Investment in LLP 
Equity settled shared based payment options 
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability 

d} Use of estimates and judgements

Measurement Basis 

Fair value 
Fair value 
Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations 

In preparing these standalone fr:and;:;I statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and:the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.'°A�tual� results may differ from 
these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

,. 

1/ 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimations uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment in the year 

ended 31 March 2022 is included in following notes: 

Note lC. c) Useful lives of property, plant, equipment; 

Note lC. d) Useful lives of intangible assets; 

Note 3 - measurement of discount rate for initial recognition of ROU and Lease Liability as per IND AS 116 

Note 5 - Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 

Note 9 - Valuation of inventories 

Note 19 & 22 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an 

outflow of resources; 

Note 35 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax credit can be used; 

Note 39 - Impairment of financial instruments 

Note 43 - measurement of loans to related parties at amortised cost and interest accrued on these loans; key assumptions for discount 

rate 

Note 44 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions; 

e) Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non­

financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a team that has overall 

responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Head of 

Treasury. 

The team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes 

or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the 

conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations 

should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to 

measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 

categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 

measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change 

has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes: 

- Note 40: Fair value measurements;

- Note 45: Employees stock option plan; and

.,. .. -



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

f) Current versus non current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set 

out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for 

processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 

purpose of current- non current classification of assets and liabilities. 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

- it is held for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the

reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets / non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non­

current. 

Liabilities 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have any unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current liabilities/ non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as 

non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Operating cycle 

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalent. The operating 

cycle of the Company is less than 12 months. 

lC. Significant accounting policies 

a) Foreign Currency Translation

Transaction in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company at the exchange rates at the 

dates of transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the 

reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 

exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange difference are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except exchange differences 

arising from the translation of t:ie following item which are recognised directly in other equity: 

Translation of long term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to period prior to transition to Ind AS and which are not related to 

purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (refer note 16). 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

b) Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised 

when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), 

transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

- amortised cost; or

-Fair value [either through profit and loss (FVTPL) or through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)]

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business 

model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

-The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent 

changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an 

investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the 

Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at 

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because 

this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes: 

-The stated policy and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate

profile, matching the duration of the financial asset to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash

flows through the sale of asset;

-How the performance of portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

-The risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those

risks are managed;

-How managers of business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the

contractual cash flows collected; and

, • ·•· · -The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in-prior•·periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future• 

sales activity. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

1C. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

b) Financial instruments (continued) 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, 

consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at 

FVTPL. 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purpose of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as 

consideration for time value of money and for credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of 

time and other basic leading risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers contractual terms of 

the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of 

contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- term that would adjust the contractual rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- term that limits the Company's claim to cash flows for specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially 

represents unpaid amount of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional 

compensation for early termination of contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired on a significant premium or discount to its 

contractual par amount, a feature that permits or require prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par 

amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) 

is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is significant at initial recognition. 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

I 
\ 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 

including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Fair value changes 

are recognised in other comprehensive income. Interest income, foreign 

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. 

When such asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised 

in other income/ expenses. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment 

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment 

are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 

recognised in profit or loss. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

b) Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as 

held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value 

and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in 

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. 

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers 

the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 

ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially 

all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are 

substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference 

between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in 

profit or loss. 

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company 

currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset 

and settle the liability simultaneously. 

c) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 

taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any din,::tly -;ittributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for ,Jts ·• 

intended use and estimate costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

i. Recognition and measurement (continued)

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separated items 

(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to 

the Company. 

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated 

useful lives using the straight line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not 

depreciated. 

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under 

Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for vehicles and furnitures and fixtures at leasehold premises. The estimated useful lives of 

items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 

Asset Management 

estimated useful life 

Leasehold improvements As per lease term 

Building 30 years 

Plant and machinery 15 years 

Electrical installation 10 years 

Air handling equipment 15 years 

Computers 3-6 years

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Useful life as per 

schedule II 

NA 

30 years 

15 years 

10 years 

15 years 

3-6 years

5 years

10 years

8-10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on 

technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives represents the period over which 

the management expects to use these assets. 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for 

use (disposed of). 
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lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

d} Intangible assets

i. Initial recognition:

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and any accumulated impairment loses, if any. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to 

Company. 

iii. Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives 

using straight line method, as is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Intangible Asset Management 

estimated useful life 

Brands acquired 5 to 10 years 

Software, license rights 2 to 10 years 

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate. 

iv. Intangible Assets under Development

Intangible assets under development are initially recognized at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently capitalized only if it is 

probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

v. Impairment

The Company irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, tests an intangible asset not yet available for use for 

impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in 

use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An 

impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the intangible asset not yet available for use exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

e} Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost on inventories is based on weighted average formula, 

and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other cost incurred in bringing them to 

their present location and condition. In case of manufactured inventory and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed 

production overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling 

expense. 

The net realisable value of work-in- progress is determined with reference to the selling price of related finished products. 

. I 
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For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Inventories (continued) 

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in production of finished products are not written down below cost except in 

cases where material price have declined and it is estimated that the cost of finished products will exceed their net realizable value. 

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 

The Company considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventory, product discontinuation, price changes and any other factor 

which impact the Company's business in determining the allowance for obsolete, non-saleable and slow moving inventories. The 

Company considers the above factqrs and adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis. 

f) Impairment 

i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is 

'credit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows of financial assets have 

occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observed data: 

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being overdue for a period of more than 12 months from the credit term offered to the

customer;

- the restructuring of loan or advance by the Company on the terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that borrower will enter bankruptcy or the financial reorganization;

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment 

loss. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of 

simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based 

on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or 

acquired financial assets if at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition. However, if 

credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

When determining whether the credit risk of financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating 

expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost 

of effort. This includes both quantitate and qualitative information and analysis based on Company's historical experience and informed 

credit assessment and including forward - looking information. 

The Company assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due. 

The Company considers f::.ancial asset to be in default when: 

a. The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to action such as realising

security (if any is held); or

b. The financial asset is 360 days or more past due.

J 

--
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For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

f) Impairment (continued)

i. Impairment of financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss 

Expected credit loss are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash 

shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the 

Company expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance of expected credit losses in the balance sheet 

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. 

Write-off 

The Gross carrying amount of financial asset is written off (either partially of full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of 

recovery. This is generally the case when Company determines that the debtor does not have asset or source of income that could 

generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount subject to write-off. However, financial assets that are written-off could still be subject 

to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

ii. Impairment of nan-financial asset

The Company's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CG Us). 

Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 

assets or CG Us. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost of disposal. Value in 

use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

The Company's corporate assets (e.g. central office building for providing support to various CG Us) do not generate independent cash 

inflows. To determine impairment of corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset 

belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses 

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying 

amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CG Us) 

on a pro rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each 

reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has 

been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's 

carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 

impairment loss had been recognised. An impairment bss on goodwill is not subsequently reversed. 































































EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 37 : Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Basic earnings per share 

A. Profit after tax from continuing operations attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in million)

B. Profit after tax from discontinued operations attributable to equity shareholders {Rs. in million)

C. Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in million)

D. Weighted average number of equity shares for the year

Basic earninl!s per share for continuinJ? ope.rations (Rs.) IA/Dl 
Basic earnines per share for discontinued operations (Rs.) (B/Dl 
Basic earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations !Rs.I (C/D) 

Diluted earnings per share 

E. Adjusted net profit from continuing operations for the year {Rs. in million) (refer note below)

F. Adjusted net profit from discontinued operations for the year (Rs. in million) (refer note below)

G. Adjusted net profit for the year (Rs. in million) (refer note below)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the year 

Add: Effect of employee stock options• 

H. Weighted average number of equity share (diluted) for the year

Diluted earnln2 per share for continuing ooerations !Rs.) IC/DI 
Diluted earnin2s oer share for discontinued ooerations IRs.l 18/01 
Diluted earninl!S oer share for continuinl! and discontinued operations (Rs.I IC/DI 

Face value oer share (Rs.I 

31-Mar-22

4,468.11 

-

4,468.11 

18,08,52,116 

24.71 
-

24.71 

4,468.11 

-

4,468.11 

18,08,52,116 

-

18,08,52,116 

24.71 
-

24.71 

10.00 

Note: Reconciliations of earnings used for calculating diluted earnings per share (continuing and discontinued operations} 

Particulars 31-Mar-22

Basic earnings per share 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share: 4,468.11 

Add: Employee share-based payment (net of tax)* -

Profit attributable to the eauitv holders of the comoanv used for calculatine diluted earninl!s oer share 4 468.11 

31-Mar-21

4,220.95 

{16.20) 

4,204.75 

18,08,52,116 

23.34 
10.09 
23.25 

4,220.95 

(16.20) 

4,204.75 

18,08,52,116 

-

18,08,52,116 

23.34 
(0.09 
23.25 

10.00 

Rs. in million 
31-Mar-21

4,204.75 

-

4 204.75 

• The effect of conversion of potential equity share for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended March 31, 2021 is excluded, since the impact 

on earnings per share is anti dilutive. 

Note 38: Capital management 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to; 

- Safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholder's and benefits for other stakeholder's,

and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 

shareholders or issue new shares. 

Generally consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Company's strategy is to 

maintain a gearing ratio less than 1.SOx. Refer note 54 for gearing ratio as at end of reporting period. 
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For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 39: Financial risk management 

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which results from the Company's operating and investing activities. The Company's risk management is carried out by central 
treasury department 'under guidance of the board of directors and the core management team of the Company, and it focuses on actively ensuring the minimal impact of Company's 
financial position. 

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk in the standalone financial statements. 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement ManaE?ement 
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other Ageing analysis credit ratings Diversification of bank deposits, 

financial assets measured at amortised cost. credit limits and letters of credit 

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other financial liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines 
and borrowing facilities 

Market risk - foreign exchange Future commercial transactions Cash flow forecasting Effective management of foreign 

Sensitivity analysis exchange outflow and inflow. 

Recognised financial assets and liabilities not Borrowing in foreign currency to 

denominated in Indian rupee (Rs.) fulfil foreign currency obligation 

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Ongoing review of existing 
borrowing rates and seeking for new 
facilities at lower rate. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 

Company's receivables from customers and other financial assets. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the 

creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that 
represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables. 

Other financial assets that are potentially subject to credit risk consists of cash equivalents, inter corporate loans and deposits. 

Further, the Company also recognises loss allowance by using a provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience wherein fixed provision rates are defined for each financial asset 
which is past due/ not due. The Company depending on the diversity of Its asset base, uses appropriate groupings if the historical credit loss experience shows significant different loss 
patterns for different customer segments/ financial assets 

Also, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk from receivables by establishing a maximum payment period for customers. 

The Company considers the recoverability from financial assets on regular intervals so that such financial assets are received within the due dates, 

The Company has exposure to credit risk which is limited to carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the date of Balance sheet. 

Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are usually due within 7-180 days. Generally, and by practice significant domestic customers enjoy a credit period of approximately 7-45 days and for export customers, 
the credit period ranges from 30 to 180 days. The receivables are not interest bearing, which is the normal industry practice. All trade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure except 
for receivables from related parties. However, the Company does not identify specific concentration of credit risk with regard to trade receivables, as the amounts recognized represent a 
large number of receivables from various customers. Further, majority of the receivables pertains to receivables from Subsidiaries, wherein the concentration of credit risk is considered to 
be low. Certain receivables are also backed by letter of credit from the banks, resulting into negligible credit risk in recovery of such receivables. 

The Company uses a provision matrix (simplified approach) to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

Year ended March 31, 2022: 
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach 

Rs in million 

Ageing Nol Due 0-90 days past 91-180 days past 181-270 days 271-360 days More than 360 Total 

du• � ..• .. � .. �--- nad'du,i, ... ,,.._. ..... -..1 ..... 

Gross carrying amount 4,610.64 2,954.66 1,032.23 742.13 387.57 685.92 10,413.15 
Expected loss rate (includes Interest as well as -2.01% -1.53% -2.98% -4.17% -3.23% -16.09% -3.09% 

Expected credlt losses (loss allowance provision) (92.62) (45.07) (30.74) (30.96) (12.50) (110.34) (322.23) 

carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 4,518.02 2,909.59 1,001.49 711.17 375.07 575.58 10,090.92 
loss a!lowan,nl 

Year ended March 31, 2021: 
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach 

Rs. In mllllon 
Ageing Not Due 0-90 days past 91-180 days past 111:21odays 271•360 day, More than 360 Total 

due duP na<t du� nastdu� da�n..+du� 

Gross carrying amount 4,001.71 3,051.25 1,334.87 977.90 469.93 510.57 10,346.23 
Evp-?:cted loss rate (includes interest as well as -1.91% -2.16% -�.99% -3.38% -3.13% -23.87% -3.40% 

E:xpected credit losses (loss allowance provision) (76.52) (6S.85) (39.96) (33.08) (14.71) (121.86) (351.98) 

carrying amount of trade receivables lnct of 3,925.19 2,985.40 1,294.91 944.82 455.22 388.71 9,994.25 
Joss allowance\ 

There are no financial assets which have been written off during the year which are subject to enforcement activity� 
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Note 39 : Financial risk management (continued) 

Recanc,liation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables 

Particulars 

Loss allowance as at the beginning of the year 

Amounts written off 
Transfer to Avet lifesciences limited pursuant to de merger (Refer note 53) 
Net remeasurement of loss allowances 

Loss allowance as at the end of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks: 

Rs In million 
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

351.98 273.71 
(13.91) (24,32) 
(42.31) 
26.47 102.59 

322.23 351.98 

With respect to the cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, the concentration of credit risk is negligible as these are kept with the reputed banks with very high credit 
worthiness. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and availability of funds through adequate amount of committed credit facility to meet the commitments arising out of 
financial liabilities, Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. In addition, the 
Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet future requirements, monitoring balance sheet liquidity 
ratios against debt covenants and maintaining debt financing plans and ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements. 

The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt payments as well as cash requirement for day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored regularly as 
well as on the basis of a 30-day cash flow projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a period from 180 to 360 days period are ldentified and reviewed at regular intervals. 

The Company maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements. Funding in regards to long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities. 

Financing arrangements 

The Company has access to undrawn borrowing facilities including overdraft facility at the end of the reporting period. 

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 

The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for: 
- all non-derivative financial liabilities, and 
- net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities. 

Rs in million 
COnt111ctu�I maturl!les of financial llabllltles Wllhln 1- vear 1 ID 2 vear.; 2 to 5 yr,ar,; Above 5 vears Total 

March 31, 2022 

Trade payable 6,013,69 - 6,013.69 
Current borrowings 8,438.83 . . 8,438.83 
Bank term loans 2,175.10 2,002.00 3,121.96 . 7,299.06 
Lease Liabilities 167.26 150.12 318.89 916.65 1,552.92 
Ttade deposit 90.05 90.05 
Other flnanclal llabihties 1.798.02 120.30 93.71 2,012.03 
Total 18,592.90 2,272.42 3,624.61 916.65 25,406.58 

March 31 2021 
Trade payable 5,742.86 5,742.86 
Current borrowings 6,595.94 . 6,595.94 
Bank term loans 2,978.17 1,964.49 4,046.43 448.82 9,437.91 
Lease Liabilities 130.97 125.19 242.48 471.65 970.29 
Trade deposit 91.72 91.72 
Other financial liabilities 1.544.95 128.00 53.72 . 1 726.67 
Total 16 992.89 2,217.68 4,434.35 920.47 24,565.39 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of it's holdings of financial instruments. 
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Company operates in international markets and a significant portion of its business is transacted in different currencies and consequently the group is exposed to foreign exchange risk 
through its sales and services and imported purchase to/from various countries. 

The Company's foreign currency exposure is main!v 1n USO, EURO, CAD and GBP. The Company's financial liabilities in foreign currency mainly constitute� of bank loans which are repayable 
over the period of 5 years and trade payables. With sufficient export receivables, the Company has positive net currency asset base as compared to liabilities. Further, the Company 
receives foreign currency against its exports receivables on regular basis against which the Company pays its loan and import commitments. The Company has significant amount receivable 
in foreign currency from it's subsidiaries which are generally collected on time. To mitigate the risk arising on account of foreign exchange fluctuation, management closely monitors the 
cash inflows based on review of expected future movement in foreign currencies. 
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Note 39: Financial risk management !continued) 

The bulk of contributions to the Company's assets, liabilities, income and expenses in foreign currency are denominated in USO, EURO, GBP, CAO, AUD and AED Foreign currency 

denominated financial assets and liabilities expressed in Rs as at the closing are as follows: 

lnmllllon 

Foreign currency risk exposure: Currency Rs. In million Foreign Currencv 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Financial assets 

Receivables (including other receivables) EURO 742,02 357.29 8.85 4.17 

USD 4,817.45 6,478.94 63.56 88.60 

G8P 1,184.77 304.26 11.90 3.02 

AED 16.63 11.98 0,81 0.60 

AUD 22.91 20.32 0.41 0,37 

CAD 885.38 1,428.75 14,39 24.39 

Loans to subsidiaries USD 283.99 2,832.23 3.75 38.74 

AED 111.90 5,63 

GBP - 604.77 - 6.00 

CAD 1,032.07 - 17.00 -

Interest receivable on loans to subsidiaries USO 118.83 161.83 1.57 2.21 

AED - 15.05 0,76 

GBP 18.97 - 0.19 

Cash and cash equivalents USD 258.37 160.27 3.41 2.19 

EURO 9.91 0,08 0.12 . 

Others• 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.13 

Total 9,372.39 12,506.70 

Financial liabilities 

Payables (including other payables) EURO 66.36 33.98 0.79 0.40 

USO 1,080.22 918.28 14.24 12.56 

GBP a.so 6.64 . 0.07 

AUD 11.40 12.31 0.20 0.22 

CAD 22.23 13.95 0.37 0.24 

Others* 1.37 1.00 . 0.02 

Interest Payable on loan USD 40.53 55.69 0.54 0.77 

GBP 0.61 0.01 

EURO 0.01 . -

Loans payable USO 3,974.79 4,838.48 52.45 66.18 

GBP 428.07 4.30 

EURO 251.67 3.00 

Total 5,877.76 5,880.33 

• Foreign currency of insignificant amount 

Sensitivity for significant currencies to whlch the Company is exposed: 

Rs. in million 

Partlwlm lmoact on orolit before tail 

3l-Mar•22 U-Mar•ll 

USD sensitivity 

USD/INR - Increase by 4% (March 31, 2021: 4%)* 15.32 152.83 

USD/INR - Decrease by 4% (March 31, 2021: 4%)• (15.32) (152.83) 

EU RO sensitivity 

EURO/INR - Increase by 2% (March 31, 2021: 2%)' 8.68 6,47 

EURO/INR - Decrease by 2% (March 31, 2021: 2%)* (8.68) (6.47) 

GBP sensitivity 

GBP/INR - Increase by 8% (March 31, 2021: 8%)' 60.45 73.71 

GBP/INR - Decrease by 8% (March 31, 2021: 8%)" (60.45) (73.71) 

CAD sensitivity 

CAD/INR - Increase by 4% (March 31, 2021: 4%)* 75.81 56.59 

CAD/INR - Decrease by 4% (March 31, 2021: 4%)* (75,81) (56.59) 

� • Holding all other variables constant 

p\}1'\�' 
....... .:------�� 
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Note 39: Financial risk management (continued) 

C) Market risk (continued) 

Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Company to interest rate risk. During March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the 

Company's borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR and USD. 

Interest rate risk exposure 

The Company's Interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the 

Company to fair value interest rate risk. 

As a part of Company's interest risk management policy, treasury department closely tracks the base interest rate movements on regular basis. Based on regular review, management 

assesses the need to enter into interest rate swaps, contracts to hedge foreign currency risk. Management reviews the future movement in base rate against different factors such as 

overall micro and macro economic factors, liquidity in the system, expected spending cycle. Further on regular basis management assess the possibility of entering into new facilities which 

would reduce the future finance cost which helps management to mitigate the risk related to interest rate movement, 

All the borrowing except vehicle loan are at floating rate. Refer note no. 17. 

Sensitivity 

The Company's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on borrowing. The Company has exposure to foreign currency as well as local currency. The local currency loans 

are mainly linked to bank base rate/ marginal cost of funds based lending (MCLR) whereas foreign currency loans are majorly linked with USO libor linked rates. 

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments. 

Rs in million 

Particulars lmDatt on pror.1 before mx 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points (25 bps) • (39.34) (40.02) 

Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis points (25 bps)• 39.34 40.02 

• Holding all other variables constant 

The bank deposits are placed on fixed rate of interest of approximately 2.75% p.a. to 6.60% p.a (March 31, 2021: 5.50% p.a. to 8% p.a). As the interest rates do not vary unless such deposits 

are withdrawn and renewed, interest rate risk is considered to be low. 
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Financial instruments and risk management 

Note 40: Fair value measurements 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their level in the fair value hierarchy. 

March 31 2022 

Particulars Cam,lnP. amounts valued 'lit 

Fair value Amortised Cost Cost 

Finahcial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Level 3 

Investment in LLP (FVOCI) 250.00 

financial assets not measured at fair value* 

Investments in Subsidiaries/ others . 5,383.59 

Loans to related parties 1,277.36 

Security deposits 131.21 . 

Trade receivables 10,090,92 . 

Interest accrued on loans to related parties 118.83 

Cash and cash equivalents . 309.23 

Term deposits with banks 185.50 . 

Other financial assets 802.41 

Total Financial assets 250.00 12 915.4.6 5 383.59 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value• 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 7,299.06 . 

Short term borrowings 8,438.83 . 

Trade deposits 90.05 

Lease Liabilities 91S.08 

Trade payables . 6,013.69 . 

Creditors for capital assets 402.38 

Other Financial liabilities 1,609.65 . 

Total financial liabilities . 24 768.74 . 

Rs in million 

Total 

250.00 

5,383.59 

1,277.36 

131.21 

10,090.92 

118.83 

309.23 

185.50 

802.41 

18 549.05 

7,299.06 

8,438.83 

90.05 

915,08 

6,013.69 

402.38 

1,609,65 

24,768.74 

• The Company has not disclosed the fair value for financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, other financial assets and 

financial liabilities because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value, due to their short-term nature, 

There are no transfers between any levels during the year. 

Determination of fair values: 

Investment in LLP: The investment included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy is valued using the cost approach to arrive at their fair value. The cost of unquoted investment 

approximates the fair value because there is wide range of possible fair value measurements and the costs represents estimate of fair value within that range. 

March 31 2021 

Partlculars- CarrvinR amounts valued at 

Fair value Amortised Cosl Cost Total 

Financial assets not measured at fair value• 

Investments in Subsidiaries/ others . . 8,637.31 8,637.31 

Loans to related parties . 2,659.70 2,659.70 

Security deposits - 120.82 120.82 

Trade receivables 9,994.25 9,994.25 

Interest accrued on loans to related parties . 121.85 121.85 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,455.58 2,455.58 

Term deposits with banks 173.41 . 173.41 

Other financial assets . 2,080.49 . 2,080.49 

Total Financial Msets . 17 606.10 8 637.31 26 243.41 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value• 

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) . 9,437.91 9,437.91 

Short term borrowings . 6,595.94 6,595.94 

Trade deposits 91.72 . 91.72 

Lease Liabilities 611.33 . 611.33 

Trade payables 5,742.86 . 5,742.86 

Creditors for capital assets 198.88 . 198.88 

Other Financial liabilities 1,527,79 . 1,527.79 

Total financial liabilities 24 206.43 . 24 206.43 

• The Company has not disclosed the fair value for financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, other financial assets and 

financial liabilities because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value, due to their short-term nature. 

There are no transfers between any levels during the year. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements !continued) 

For the year ended March 31, Z0ZZ 

Note 41 : Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as at year end 

Sr. No. Particulars 31-Mar-ZZ 

a) Sales tax 23.54 

bl Excise and Service Tax matters 19,85 

Total 43.39 

c) Other notes: 

Rs in million 

31-Mar-Zl 

29.57 

21.06 

50.63 

1) A Search and Seizure Operation l'the Operation') was conducted by the Income Tax Department during the month of December 2020 under section 132 of the Income-tax Act, 

1961. The Company has received notices u/s. 153A and has filed the required returns of income for the respective assessment years. Based on the enquiries made by the Income 

tax department and the Company's submissions thereto, Management is of the view that the matters involved are normal tax matters in respect of certain tax deductions and 

allowances, and accordingly the Operation will not have any significant impact on the Company's financial position and performance as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 

or any of the earlier years presented herein. 

2) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above as it is 

determinable only on receipt of judgment/decisions pending with various forums/authorities. 

3) The Company is also contesting other civil claims against which the Company not acknowledged as debts and the management believes that its position will likely be upheld in 

the appellate process. At this stage in the proceedings, it is not possible to estimate the likelihood or extent of the liability, if any. 

4) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgment dated 28th February, 2019, relating to components/allowances paid that need to be 

taken into account while computing an employer's contribution of provident fund under the Employees1 Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provident Act, 1952. The Company 

has also obtained a legal opinion on the matter and basis the same there is no material impact on the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2022 or any of the earlier 

years presented herein. The Company would record any further effect on its standalone financial statements, on receiving additional clarity on the subject. 

5) Further, the Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent 

liabilities where applicable, in the standalone financial statements. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of above proceeding will not have a material adverse 

effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations. 

B. Other legal matters 

AstraZeneca Vs Emcure CS (COMM)-407/Z0Z0 (Dapagliflozin Tablet) 

On Sep 29, 2020
1 

AstraZeneca filed a patent infringement suit for asserting two patents ( IN205147 and IN235625) related to Dapagliflozin, against Emcure and sought injunction 

relief. Emcure made statement in Court that "Emcure will not be manufacturing and/or launching its product as it has lost commercial interest in Dapagliflozin". ln view of this 

statement, Delhi High Court passed an Order. On November 15, 2021, Emcure filed an application to withdraw its earlier statement and seek permission for launch Dapaglifolozin 

due to revival of business interest. On this basis, the Delhi High Court vide its order dated Feb 22, 2022 has modified its earlier order of Oct 22, 2020, thereby allowing Emcure to 

manufacture and / or launch the said product subject to the undertaking provided in the Order, 

Bristol Myers Squibb (BMS) Vs Emcure CS(COMM)-684/2019 

In Dec 2019, BMS sued Emcure in Delhi High Court for infringement of Indian Patent No.247381
1 

expiring on Sep 17, 2022. On Dec 12, 2019, the court granted an ad-interim 

injunction in favour of BMS and against Emcure. The court directed parties to maintain status quo for launch of its product till the disposal of the application. Thereafter, Emcure 

filed an appeal division bench of Delhi High Court, which is FAO(OS)(COMM) 377/2019, the aforesaid matters are still pending, 

HDT Bio Corp. Vs Emcure 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals, Ltd. ("Emcure") was sued by HOT Bio Corp. ("HOT") in the United States District Court- Seattle Division for the Western District of Washington on March 

21, 2022 alleging that it misappropriated trade secrets. HDrs allegations arise from alleged breaches of a License Agreement ("the Agreement") between HOT and Gennova 

Pharmaceuticals Limited ("Gen nova"), a subsidiary of Emcure. Emcure is not a party to the Agreement between HOT and Gennova. While the case is still in an early procedural 

phase, the merits of HOT's claims cannot be fully assessed at this time. However, Management believes that it has strong grounds of defense in the matter. 

C. Drug Pricing Matters •• 

Department of Justice On December 2, 2015, the Company's subsidiary Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc (Heritage) learned that the United States Department of Justice, Antitrust 

Division ("DOJ"} initiated an investigation into Heritage and its employees regarding alleged violations of U.S. antitrust laws, which prohibit contracting or conspiring to restrain 

trade or commerce. In support of that investigation, the OOJ executed relevant search warrants at the Heritage's premises and at the residence of one of the Heritage's national 

accounts managers. In addition, the DOJ served grand jury subpoenas on the Heritage, and several current and former employees, which sought a variety of materials and data 

relevant to the Heritage's generic drug business. The Heritage is fully cooperated with the DOJ and responded to its subpoenas, 

On May 7, 2018, Heritage received a civil investigative demand from the United States Department of Justice, Civil Division ("DOJ Civil") seeking documents and information in 

connection with a simultaneous investigation under the False Claims Act. 

On May 31, 2019, Heritage announced that it entered into a deferred prosecution agreement (11DPA") with the DOJ relating to a one-count Information for a conspiracy involving 

glyburide. In conjunction with the DPA, Heritage agreed to pay a USO 225,000 fine. In addition, Heritage also announced that it separately agreed to a settlement with OOJ Civil to 

resolve potential civil liability under the False daims Act in connection with the same antitrust conduct. Under the terms of the settlement with DOJ Civil, Heritage agreed to pay 

USO 7.1 million. These resolutions fully resolve Heritage's potential exposure in connection with the DOJ's ongoing investigation into the generics pharmaceutical industry. 

In addition to the above, on May 31, 2019, the Company also entered into a cooperation and non-prosecution agreement ("NPA") with DOJ under which the Company, and its 

current officers, directors, and employees received non-prosecution protection in exchange for its agreement to provide cooperation into the DOJ's investigation. This resolution 

fully resolves the Company and its current officers, directors, and employees from potential exposure in connection with the DOJ's ongoing investigation into the generics 

pharmaceutical industry. ,, 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements !continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 41 : Contingent liabilities {to the extent not provided for) {continued) 

D. Attorneys General litigation .. 

On December 21, 2015, the Company's subsidiary Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc ("Heritage") received a subpoena and interrogatories from the Connecticut Office of the Attorney 

General seeking information relating to the marketing, pricing and sale of certain of Heritage's generic products (including generic doxycycline) and communications with 

competitors about such products. On December 14, 2016, attorneys general of twenty states filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District of Connecticut 

against several generic pharmaceutical drug manufacturers and individuals, including Heritage, alleging anticompetitive conduct with respect to, among other things, doxycycline 

hyclate DR. On June 18, 2018, attorneys general of forty-five states, the District of Columbia and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico filed an amended consolidated complaint 

against various drug manufacturers, including Heritage, Emcure and Emcure's Chief Executive Officer, Satish Mehta based on the same alleged conduct. The consolidated 

complaint {the "State AG Complaint") was subsequently amended to add certain attorneys general alleging violations of federal and state antitrust laws, as well as violations of 

various states' consumer protection laws. 

The consolidated State AG Complaint alleges that Heritage engaged in anticompetitive conduct with respect to fifteen different drugs: acetazolamide; doxycycline monohydrate, 

doxycycline hyclate DR, fosinopril HCTZ, glipizide metformin, glyburide, glyburide metformin, leflunomide, meprobamate, nimodipine, nystatin, paromomycin, theophylline, 

verapamil, and zoledronic acid. The consolidated State AG Complaint also includes claims asserted by attorneys general of thirty-seven states and the Commonwealth of Puerto 

Rico against Heritage, Emcure, and certain individuals, including Emcure's Chief Executive Officer, Satish Mehta, with respect to doxycycline hyclate DR. The allegations in the 

State AG Complaint are similar to those in the previously filed civil complaints (discussed below}. 

The consolidated State AG Complaint was transferred and consolidated into the ongoing multidistrict litigation captioned In re Generic Pharmaceuticals Pricing Antitrust Litigation, 

case No. 16 MD 2724, which is currently pending in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the 11Antitrust MDL"). 

The parties are engaged in initial factual discovery in the Antitrust MDL, and therefore, at this stage in the proceedings, it is not possible to estimate the likelihood or extent of the 

liability, if any. 

E. Civil Litigation •• 

Beginning in 2016
1 Heritage, along with other manufacturers, has been named as a defendant in lawsuits generally alleging anticompetitive conduct with respect to generic drugs. 

The lawsuits have been filed by putative classes of direct and indirect purchasers, indirect resellers, as well as individual direct and indirect purchasers. They allege harm under 

federal and state antitrust laws, state consumer protection laws and unjust enrichment claims. Some of the lawsuits also name Heritage and company's Chief Executive Officer, 

Satish Mehta, as defendants and include allegations against them with respect to doxycycline hyclate DR. The lawsuits have been consolidated in the Antitrust MDL (referenced 

above). 

A number of other lawsuits have been separately filed against Heritage, and various other manufacturers, by individual plaintiffs who have elected to opt-out of the putative 

classes. These complaints also generally allege anticompetitive conduct with respect to generic drugs which allegedly caused harm under federal and state antitrust laws, state 

consumer protection laws and unjust enrichment claims. These lawsuits have also been consolidated in the pending Antitrust MDL 

The parties are engaged in initial factual discovery in the Antitrust MDL, and therefore, at this stage in the proceedings, it is not possible to estimate the likelihood or extent 

potential liability, if any. 

F. Other Litigation Matters Filed Against Heritage •• 

Ranitidine Litigation 

In June 2020, the Company1s subsidiary Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc (Heritage) received notice that three Master Consolidated Complaints - the Master Personal Injury 

Complaint {"MPIC"), the Consolidated Consumer Class Action Complaint {"CCCAC"), and the Consolidated Third Party Payor dass Complaint ("CTPPCC")- and five individually-filed 

purported class actions have been filed against a number of defendants, including Heritage, Heritage Labs, and Emcure, alleging personal injuries in connection with alleged 

elevated levels of NOMA contained in a ranitidine product that may have been manufactured by a third-party manufacturer and allegedly sold by Heritage. Each case has been 

consolidated into the ongoing multidistrict litigation captioned In re: Zantac {Ranitidine) Products Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2924, Case No. 20 MO 294, in the United States 

District Court, Southern District of Florida. Heritage Labs and Emcure have been dismissed by the Court from this litigation without prejudice, leaving Heritage as the single 

remaining defendant. Heritage is no longer subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to scheme of arrangement as referred in note 53 of the financial statements. 

•• The Company has entered into an indemnity agreement with Avet Lifesciences limited ("Avet Life"), whereby from the effective date of the scheme of arrangement (as 

referred in note 53 of the financial statements), Avet Life has agreed to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company and directors, officers, employees, agent, 

representatives and shareholders of the Company (the "Indemnified Parties"), as applicable, from and against any and all the losses suffered or incurred by the Indemnified 

Parties, which arises out of, or results from or in connection with any claim and any loss suffered by the Indemnified Parties on account of breach by Avet Life or its subsidiaries 

and affiliates of any covenants, undertakings and/or obligations of the Indemnification Deed, and in relation to losses arising out of certain identified claims including claims and 

obligations of the Company under the non-prosecution agreement and the leniency agreement, entered into with the DOJ and several pending litigations in the U.S. Pursuant to 

the Indemnification Deed, Avet Life will assume all losses or liability, and the payment obligation {if any), that would be owed by the Company in either the State AG Complaint or 

the Civil Cases under a negotiated settlement agreement, or an adverse verdict rendered by a jury against the Company or our officers, directors and employees. As a result of 

such indemnity agreement, the Company would be liable for any potential settlement obligation, or adverse jury verdict for the amount directed specifically against it, only in the 

event that Avet Life is unable to fully satisfy such an obligation or verdict. 

J. General 

From time to time, the Company is subject to various disputes, governmental and/or regulatory inquiries or investigations, and litigations, some of which result in losses, 

damages, fines and charges against the Company. While the Company intends to vigorously defend its position in the claims asserted against it, the ultimate resolution of a matter 

is often complex, time consuming, and difficult to predict. Therefore, except as described below, the Company does not currently have a reasonable basis to estimate the loss, or 

range of loss, that is reasonably possible with respect to matters disclosed in this note. 

The Company records a provision in its standalone financial statements to the extent that it concludes that a contingent liability is probable and the amount is estimable and has 

noted those contingencies below. The Company's assessments involve complex judgments about future events and often rely heavily on estimates and assumptions. The 

Company also incurs significant legal fees and related expenses in the course of defending its positions even if the facts and circumstances of a particular litigation do not give rise 

to a provision in the standalone financial statements. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 42: Capital and other commitments Ito the extent not provided for) 

A} Capital commitment 

Particulars 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 

not provided for (net of advances) 

B) Other commitments 

i) Export Oriented Unit compliance 

Rs. in million 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
847 71 404.56 

The Company has a 100 per cent Export Oriented Unit (EOU) set up under the permission granted by the Office of the Development Commissioner of SEEPZ Special Economic 
Zone of the Government of India. The authorities have, inter alia, laid down the following conditions, failing which the Company may be liable for penal action: 

i. The entire {100%) production shall be exported against hard currency except the sales in domestic tariff area admissible as per entitlement. 
ii. The Export Oriented Unit of the Company shall be a positive net foreign exchange earner over a period of six years from the date of commencement of production. 

As at the year end, the Company is in compliance with the condition laid down by the authorities and does not expect any non-compliance in future. 

ii) Long-term contracts 
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company did not have any long-term 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses, 

iii) Derivative contracts 
The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year and has no derivative contract outstanding as at the year end. 

C) Financial guarantees given 

The company expcsure towards corporate g\larantees given as at the reponlnc date is as below· 

March 31, 2022 Currency Out51J,ndlnR,Guarantee Value Outstanding F,rnosure Value 
FC. In million Rs. In million FC. In mllllon Rs. In million 

Bankers for Gen nova Biopharmaceuticals Ltd. In respect of loans INR . 2,295.00 1,241.87 
Bankers for Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. in respect of loans CAD 26.30 1,596.68 23.90 1,451.03 
Bankers for Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. in respect of loans USD 25.56 1,937.13 21.23 1,608.91 

Bankers for Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ LLC in respect of loans AED 8.00 165.06 6.49 133.91 
Bankers for Tillomed laboratories limited. in respect of loans GBP 6.60 657,03 6.00 597.30 
Bankers for Avet lifesciences Private Limited in respect of loans USO 65.00 4,926.19 57.47 4,355.41 

March 31, 2021 Currency Outstanding Guarantee Value Outstanding El<posure Value 
FC. In million Rs. In million FC. ln million Rs. In million 

Bankers for Gen nova Biopharmaceuticals ltd. Jn respect of loans INR . 140.00 . 18.24 
Bankers for Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. in respect of loans USO 75,00 5,482.87 62.26 4,551.81 
Bankers for Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. in respect of loans CAD 58.40 3,400.05 25.88 1,506.65 
Erstwhile Shareholders of Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. CAD 48.01 2,795.14 47.25 2,751.16 
Bankers for Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ LLC. in respect of loans AED 8,00 158.94 7.03 139.63 
Bankers for Tillomed laboratories Limited. in respect of loans GBP 6.60 665.24 6.00 604.76 

All the above financial guarantees have been accounted as per the provisions of lnd AS 109 - financial instruments. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 43 - Related party disclosure 

Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year and nature of relationship 

Subsidiaries: 

Step-down subsidiaries: 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 

Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda 

Emcure Nigeria Limited 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC, 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 

Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. (doing business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Holdings Jnc.) {Upto March 31, 2021) 

Emcure Pharma UK Ltd. 

Emcure Pharma Mexico S.A. DE C.V, 

Emcure Pharma Peru S AC 

Marean Phc.tmM.ieutlu1b Inc 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. 

Avet Lifesciences Private Limited (formerly known as Avet Lifesciences Limited) (From August 26, 2020 upto March 31, 2021) 

Emcure Pharma Chile SpA {From October 2, 2020) 

Lazor Pharmaceuticals Limited (From February 4, 2021) 

Emcure Pharma Philippines Inc (From May 07, 2021) 

Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc. (doing business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Inc.) (Subsidiary of Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc.) {Upto March 31, 2021) 

Heritage Pharma Labs Inc. (doing business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Labs Inc.) (Subsidiary of Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc.) (Upto March 31, 2021) 

Hacco Pharma Inc. (Subsidiary of Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc.) (Upto March 31, 2021) 

Tillomed Laboratories Limited (Subsidiary of Tillomed Holdings Limited) 

Tillomed Pharma GmbH, Germany (Subsidiarv of Emcure Pharma UK Ltd.) 

Laboratories Tillomed Spain S.L.U. (Subsidiarv of Emcure Pharma UK Ltd,) 

Tillomed France SAS (Subsidiary of Emcure Pharma UK Ltd.) 

Tillomed Italia S R.L, Italy (Subsidiary of Emcure Pharma UK Ltd.) 

Emcure NZ Limited (Subsidiary of Emcure Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd.) (Dissolved w. e. f. October 13, 2021) 

Tillomed Laboratories BV (Subsidiary of Emcure Pharma UK Ltd.) 

Tillomed d o.o. {Subsidiary of Emcure Pharma UK Ltd.) (From August 26, 2021) 

Key Management Personnel: Whole Time Directors 

Mr. Satish Mehta (Managing Director) 

Dr. Mukund Gurjar (Executive Director) 

Mr.Sunil Mehta {Executive Director) 

Mrs. Namita Thapar (Executive Director) (Chief Finance Officer upto April 15, 2021) 

Key Management Personnel: Other than Whole Time Directors 

Mr. S,K. Bapat {Independent Director) 

Mr. Humayun Ohanrajgir (Chairman and Independent Director upto Apn1 15, 2021) 

Mr. Berjis Desai (Chairman and Independent Director) (Appointed as Chairman w.e.f. April 16, 2021) 

Mr. Samonnoi Banerjee (Nominee of BC Investment IV Ltd) (Director) 

Mr. P, S. Jayakumar {Independent Director w.e.f. July 22, 2020) 

Mr. Tajuddin Shaikh (Chief Finance Officer w.e.f. April 16, 2021) 

Dr. Vidya Rajiv Yeravdekar (Independent Director w .e.f. April 16, 2021) 

Dr. Shailesh Kripalu Avvangar (Non Executive Director w.e.f. April 16, 2021) 

Mr. Vijay Keshav Gokhale {Independent Director w.e.f. April 16, 2021) 

Mr. Hitesh Jain (Independent Director w.e.f. July 27, 2021) 

Key Management Personnel: Relatives 

Mr. Sanjay Mehta 

Mr. Vikas Thapar 

Mr. Samit Mehta 

Mr. Rutav Mehta 

Mr. Niraj Mehta 

Mrs. Bhavana Mehta 

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have control: 

H.M. Sales Corporation 

Uth Beverages Factory Pvt. Ltd. 

Avet Lifesciences Private Limited (formerly known as Avet Ule1dences Limited) (From April 1, 2021) 

Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. (doing business as Avet Pha,mx.eulicals Holdings Inc.) (Subsidiary of Avet Ufesciences Private Limited w.e.f. April l, 2021) (From April 1, 2021) 

Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc. (doing business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Inc.) (Subsidiary of Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc.) (From April 1, 2021) 

Heritage Pharma Labs Inc, (doing business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Labs Inc.) (Subsidiary of Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc.) (From April 1, 2021) 

Hacco Pharma Inc, (Subsidiary of Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc.) (From Aprfl l, 2021) 

Parinam Law Associates (w.e.f. July 27, 2021) 

Brandbucket Enterprises Private Umited (w.e.f. April 16, 2021) 

·•) ·.
• I F 
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EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 43 - Related party disclosure (continued) 

Sr. 

No, 

1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

Description of the nature of transaction/ balance 

Purchase of goods & services 
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 
Parinam law Associates 

Brand bucket Enterprises Private limited 

Sale of assets 

Zuventus Healthcare Limited 
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 
Uth Beverages Factory Pvt. Ltd, 
Heritage Pharma Labs Inc, 

Purchase of assets 
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 

Sale /(Return) of goods and services 
Zuventus Healthcare limited 
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 
Heritage Pharma Labs Inc. 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC. 
Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 
Emcure Pharma UK Ltd. 
Emcure Pharma Peru S,A.C, 
Tillomed Laboratories limited 
Tillomed Pharma GmbH 
Tillomed Italia S.R,L 
Tillomed Spain 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
H.M, Sales Corporation 
Hacco Pharma Inc. 
Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 
Lazor Pharmaceuticals limited 
Avet Ufesciences Private Limited 

Advance received for goods and services 
Tillomed Laboratories Limited 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

Purchase of shares of subsidiary 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. (refer note 3 below) 
Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc 
Emcure Pharma UK Ltd. 
Emcure Pharma Peru S.A.C, 
Avet Ufesciences Private Limited 
Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC. 
Emcure Pharma Philippines Inc 
J_azor Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Equity contribution in the nature of employee stock options issued to 
employees of subsidiary/ {cancellation of employee stock options Issued) 
Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. 
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
Heritage Pharma Labs Inc. 
Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
Tillomed Laboratories Limited 
Tillomed Italia S.R.L 

Loans and advances given (refer note 1 below) 
Emcure Nigeria Limited 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC. 
Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica ltda. 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 
Emcure Pharma Mexico S,A� DE C.V_ 
Emcure Pharma Peru S.A,C. 
Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. 
£mcure Pharma UK Ltd. 
Avet Lifesciences Private Limited 
Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 
Lazor Pharmaceuticals Limited 

* -
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Transaction value Balance outstandini:, as at 

31-Ma,.22 31-Mar-21 

Year ended Year ended Receivable/ Payable/ Advance Receivable/ Payable / Advance 

31-Mar-ZZ 31-Mar-21 Advance from to supplier Advance from to suppUer 
···-·-·· ······-·· 

87 97 89.62 1.15 
38 08 81.29 . 15.16 
0 .08 0.08 
l ao 0.22 

128.93 170.91 0.30 . 16.31 

2.64 13 59 
145,34 (152.14) 

0,01 0,11 0.01 0.13 
8.77 

156.76 13.70 0.01 1152.011 

0.04 
Qj)4 

686.30 429.39 2.47 6 56 . 

284,91 230.62 119.60 2.85 
234.17 67.37 96.78 110.11 
772.58 386.00 435.31 99 80 
18 7 0  776.90 1,629.68 

366.69 1,052.47 240.98 818.16 
(92.02) 22SA6 230,23 

820,19 3,320.68 1,644 30 1,708.27 
3,433 24 2,734,36 1,171.10 

2.82 2 .61 . 

189 36 14.53 199.60 14.65 
27.41 . 27.19 

1,306.70 1,342.05 782.74 1,366.15 
(2.96) (5.07) 3,97 
S.88 256,74 97.97 88.70 

39.70 40.80 . 

12,85 13.11 
662.08 761.32 . 

8 860.62 10 514.02 S l!El.34 6 079,13 

(6.01) 
127.961 
133.971 

5.96 651.57 
1,486.31 
2,022.72 

41.05 . . 

0.10 
3.66 . 

. 178 76 
321.11 . 

15.12 
7.45 

28.53 4 705.28 

(25.26) . . 

(2.45) 
1,96 0.73 

12,67 0.42 
(7.83) - . 

(117.68) 
6.99 7.01 
2.92 . 

24.54 1145.061 

46.00 33.81 
. 119 85 
. 96 89 Bl.IS 

1,011.09 1,032.06 
68 30 . 57.70 

60.06 105.42 
2,509.05 . 2,485.74 . 

310.32 560.19 604.77 
10.65 1.30 1.30 
18 93 18 95 . 
14,97 15.16 . 

1.365.96 3 130.60 l 277.36 3 489.74 



EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 43 - Related party disclosure (continued) 

Sr. Description of the nature of transaction/ balance 

No. 

9 Loans and advances repaid (refer note 1 below) 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC 
Emcure Pharma Peru S.A�C. 

Emcure Pharma UK Ltd. 

Avet lifesciences Private Limited 

10 Interest income 
Emcure Nigeria Limited 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC, 

Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda 

Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc, 

Emcure Pharma Peru S A,C, 

Emcure Pharma Mexico S A  DE C.V. 

Emcure Pharma UK Ltd. 

Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc, 
Avet lifesciences Private limited 

Lazor Pharmaceuticals limited 

Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 

11 Net gain/(loss) on loans given to subsidiaries measured at amortised cost 
Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda. 

Emcure Nigeria limited 

Emcure Pharma Mexico S,A� OE C,V. 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC. 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 

12 Interest expense 

H.M. Sales Corporation 

l3 Sale of Steam (classified under other Income) 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 

14 Purchase of Steam 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

15 Laboratory Service Income 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 

Zuventus Healthcare Limited 

16 Trade/ Security deposits accepted 
H.M. Sales Corporation 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

Gennova Biopharmaceutlcals Limited 

Avet Lifesciences Private limited 

17 Amortisation of deferred rent receivable 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 
Zuventus Healthcare limited 

18 Unwinding of discount on rent deposft 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 

Zuventus Healthcare Limited 

19 Commission expenses 
H.M.Sales Corporation 

20 Reimbursement of expenses made 

Heritage Pharma Labs Inc. 

Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc, 

Avet Ufesciences Private limited 

Hacco Pharma Inc. 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

Transaction value 

Vear ended Year ended 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

133.90 

113 21 96 75 

109,21 

914.39 
10 65 

1 147.46 230.65 

3.83 3,81 

3 11 

1,25 18 93 

8.03 8,00 

34,14 

7.21 6.35 

6.85 6 82 
15,85 22,10 

36.27 
0,32 0,02 

0,13 

0.33 
77.94 105.41 

11,80 (21.22) 

10.10 (22.17) 

7.80 (9.22) 

(7,96) 7.85 

6 63 
21.74 138.131 

0.75 0.75 

0.75 0,75 

39.75 18.69 

39.75 18.69 

5.66 

5.66 

0.06 

0,83 . 

0.89 

0.02 

36,72 

0.15 

36.8!1 

1.21 1.12 

0.17 
1.21 1.29 

1.73 1.42 

0.15 

1.73 1.57 

34.62 2934 

34.62 2!1.34 

2.94 1,80 

28.05 100,25 

13.33 11.96 

24.73 
0.02 

69.07 114.01 

Rs- In million 

Oal:i:ncc cx.1tstandln2 as at 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
Receivable/ Payable/ Advance Receivable/ Payable/ Advance 

Advance from to supplier Advance from to supplier 
------- , .. _. __ 

-

38,60 . 32,02 
2856 

15,05 

56.97 43.09 

- 13.19 

22.92 16,04 

18 97 

30.68 

O.D2 

0.12 

o.n 

118.83 197.62 

. 

. 

- . 

-

. 

0.17 0.17 
0.17 0.17 

21.42 1.00 -

21.42 1.00 

0 01 

0.01 

10.00 10,00 

1.02 1.00 

51.72 13.27 

0.15 -

62.89 24.27 

- 1.21 

- . 1.21 

. 

5.56 9.04 
5.56 9.04 

2.94 1.83 
26.79 98 83 

22.23 . 13.95 
11.00 

62.96 . U4.61 



EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 43 - Related party disclosure (continued) 

Sr. Description of the nature of transaction/ balance 

No. 

21 Reimbursement of eJCpenses received 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 

Heritage Pharma Labs Inc. 

Tfllomed Italia S,R.L 

Tillomed Pharma GmbH 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC, 

Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. 

Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc, 

Tillomed Laboratories Limited 

Laboratories Tillomed Spain S.L.U 

Tillomed France SAS 

Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc, 

Avet Ufesciences Private Limited 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (pty) Ltd 

Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 

Emcure Nigeria Limited 

Emcure Pharma Mexico S A  OE C.V. 

Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda. 

Emcure Pharma Peru S,A.C 

22 Dividend received 

Zuventus Healthcare Limited 

23 Rent income 

Zuventus Healthcare Limited 

Gennova Biophumaceuticals Limited 

Avet Ufesciences Private Limited 

24 R&D service income 

Avet Lifesciences Private Limited 

ZS Amortisation of financial guarantee liability 

Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

26 Financial guarantee fees charged 

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals limited 

Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. 

Emcure Pharma UK Ltd. 

Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC. 

Tillomed Laboratories Limited 

27 Royalty expense 

Uth Beverages Factory Pvt, Ltd. 

28 Marketing Support Fees (classified under Advertisement & Promotional 

Material) 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ -LLC. 

Emcure Nigeria Limited 

Emcure Pharma Mexico S.A, OE C.V. 

Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda, 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. 

Emcure NZ Limited 

Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 

Emcure Pharma Philippines Inc 

29 Corporate Overhead Cross Charge (Income) (classified under other income) 

Heritage Pharmaceuticals Inc, 

Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

Tillomed Laboratories Limited 

Avet Lifesciences Privatt! Limited 

30 Corporate Overhead Cross ..:.:narge (Expense) 

Heritage Pharm.iceuticals Inc, 

Hacco Pharma Inc. 

31 Financial guarantee fees paid (classified under other borrowing costs) 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

/.) ..., 

----
.

1 

Transaction value 

Year ended Year ended 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

4.71 
55.17 

68.42 

11.34 1139 
12.24 18 57 

3.36 2.60 
92.75 

3.07 39.79 
77.49 93,59 

6.52 11,70 
5.34 3.37 

91 12.84 
403.03 0.52 

0,21 
0.63 

0,03 
0,12 
0,04 
0.56 

585.54 356.17 

319.20 159.60 
319 . .  20 159.60 

10.11 9.35 
92,86 33 26 

0.41 
10.3.38 42.61 

146 85 . 

146.85 

32.07 20 25 
32.07 20.25 

8.26 1.70 
55.48 69,07 

0.94 
7.02 4.48 

1.57 1.58 
4.97 4.84 

77.30 82.61 

0.95 L15 
0.95 1.1S 

99.48 24.80 

3.16 4.94 
28.55 20,42 

8.72 17,30 
7.02 14.21 

1.79 3.13 
26.18 2,42 

8.10 
183.00 87.22 

7.72 73.52 
56.05 37.47 
91.86 61.28 
24.JlO . 

179.63 172.27 

9.41 73.59 
69.20 

9.41 142.79 

27 04 4.06 
27.04 4.06 

R"". m mlllion 

Bahance outstandrtu? uat 

31-MiH-22 

Receivable/ Payable/ Advance 

Advance from to supplier 

,utt•-•• 

. 

34,11 

18.91 
16.48 
10.60 

3.11 
75.79 
13.23 

6.87 
17.23 

297.32 

0.66 

0.57 . 

494.88 

36.44 
Ol] 

36.71 

59.E6 
59.96 

8.20 
1 4 .44 

6.97 
16 80 

7.72 
4.93 

59.06 . 

o.:u 

0.21 

73.86 
5.95 
1,83 

13.63 
12.78 

10.77 
- 4�23 

123.05 

2.88 
68.61 
90.62 
13.92 

176.03 

33.15 
97.36 

130.51 

31-Mor-21 

Receivable/ Payable / Advance 

Advance from to supplier 

Moc••-•• 

167.56 
7 98 
4.58 
7.51 

188.34 

40,02 
27231 

7.08 
1.67 

18.05 

0.63 

715.73 

32 07 

32.07 

32.07 
32.07 

201.35 
7.06 
9.12 
6,11 
4.99 

228.63 

0.27 
0.27 

9.62 
3,46 

. 7.27 
13.80 
12.31 

1.00 
2.47 

49.93 

71,54 
35.42 
42,24 

. 

149.20 

17.63 
69.20 
86.83 

.,, 
//".. M"""'.T r-. --.., 

�;�v -•10� 

.Q., (j) 

□
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EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 43 - Related party disclosure (continued) 

Sr. Description of the nature af transaction/ balance 
No. 

32 Accrued interest balance written-off (classified under other borrowing costs) 

Emcure Pharm.tceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 

33 Remuneration paid 
Key Management Personnel: Whole Time Directors 
Mr. Salish Mehta 

Dr, Mukund Gurjar 
Mr.Sunil Mehta 
Mrs. Namita Thapar 

34 Remuneration paid 
Key Management Personnel: Relatives 
Mr. Samit Mehta 
Mr. Vikas Thapar 
Mr. Sanjay Mehta 

35 Remuneration paid 
Key Management Personnel: Other than Whole Time Directors 
Mr Tajuddin Shaikh 

36 Post-employment obligations 
Key Management Personnel: Whole Time Directors 
Mr. Sunil Mehta 
Mrs. Namita Thapar 

37 Post-employment obligations 
Key Management Personnel: Relatives 
Mr. Samit Mehta 
Mr. Vik.as Thapar 
Mr Sanjay Mehta 

38 Post-employment obligations 
Key Management Personnel: Other than Whole Time Directors 
Mr, Tajuddin Shaikh 

39 Compensated absences 
Key Management Personnel: Whole Time Directors 
Mr. Satish Mehta 
Dr. Mukund Gurjar 
Mr. Sunil Mehta 
Mrs. Namita Thapar 

40 Compensated absences 
Key Management Personnel: Relatives 
Mr. Samit Mehta 
Mr Vikas Thapar 
Mr. Sanjay Mehta 

41 Compensated absences 
Key Management Personnel: Other than Whole Time Directors 
Mr. Tajuddin Shaikh 

42 Employee share based payments 
Key Management Personnel: Relatives 
Mr. Vikas Thapar 

43 Employee share based payments 
Key Management Personnel: Other than Whole Time Directors 
Mr. Tajuddin Shaikh 

44 Dividend paid 
Key Management Personnel: Whole Time Directors I 

Mr. Satish Mehta 
Dr. Mukund Gurjar 
Mr. Su nil Mehta 
Mrs Namita Thapar 

A ' 
I 

-

Transaction value 

Vear ended Year ended 
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

16.68 

16.68 

234,62 209 82 

4 8.74 42.93 

28 99 22.85 

37 02 30.06 

349.37 305.66 

24 59 29.03 

38 87 30.37 

ZS 89 23.37 

92.35 82J7 

1291 

12.91 

7,90 

201 4.11 

2.01 u.01 

3 .72 5,96 

1.97 3,60 

2,03 6.49 

7.72 16.05 

4.]] 

4.11 

2,04 1,12 

0.48 0,36 

0.39 1.18 

0.49 1.St 

3.40 4.17 

0.81 1.84 

0.46 1.30 

0.08 0.94 

L35 4.08 

0.78 

0.78 

1 73 4.13 

1.73 4.13 

1 07 -

1.07 

227.45 75,75 

0.89 0,30 

33.26 11,09 

19.02 6.34 

2B0.62 93.48 

RL lnmlllfor,i 

Balance outstandincr as at 
31-Mar-22 

Receivable/ Payable / Advance 
Advance from to supplier ·- --· 

-

69,69 

11.00 

3.50 

- 4.41 

88.60 

2.62 

4.47 

3.36 

- 10.45 

3.12 

- 3.12 

12,08 

U.08 

- 16.12 

- 11.98 

- 18.11 

46.21 

. 4.11 

- 4.U 

- 19,02 

4.44 

3.02 

4.58 

31.06 

- 4.89 

4.Sl 

2.68 

U.08 

0.78 

0.78 

37 88 

37.88 

7.05 

7.05 

-

31-Mar-21 

Receivable/ 
Advance from 

-·----·

-

-

. 

- .

/ 

Payable/ Advance 
to supplier 

-

62.54 

9.51 

2 81 

3.55 

78.41 

3.58 

3,53 

2.B7 

9.98 

-

10.07 

w.01 

12.41 

10.01 

16.08 

38.50 

16.98 

3.96 

2.64 

4.09 

27.67 

4,08 

4.04 

260 

10.72 

. 

36.15 

36.15 

. 
-

--
--��,. ...... ... ·, 

�a 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 43 • Related party disclosure (continued} 

Sr. 

No. 

45 

46 

47 

48 

49 

R1i in mllllon 

Description of the nature of transaction/ balance Transaction value Ba.l;ancc outs1-andln� as ;1 
31-MIH-22 "3.1-Mar-il 

Vear ended Year ended Receivable/ Payable/ Advance Receivable/ Payable/ Advance 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 Advance from to supplier Advance from to supplier 
···----· -···---·

Dividend paid 
key Management Personnel: Relatives 
Mr. Samit Mehta 40.64 13.55 
fv'lr Vikas Thapar 1 13 0.38 . 

Mr. Sanjay Mehta 47.29 15.76 
Mrs. Bhavana Mehta 27.77 9 26 
Mr. Rutav Mehta 3.29 1.10 
Mr Niraj Mehta 3.30 

123.42 40.05 . 
Commission - Other than Whole Time Directors 

Mr S,K, Bapat 2.50 2,50 2.50 2.50 
Mr. Humayun Dhanrajgir 2 00 2.00 
Mr. Berjis Desai 5.00 3.50 5.00 3.50 
Mr. P, S, Jayakumar 3.60 2 40 . 3,60 2.40 
Or. Vidya Rajiv Yeravdekar 1.50 . 1.50 . 
Mr. Vijay Keshav Gokhale 2.00 2.00 
Mr. Hitesh Jain 3.00 . 3.00 
Or, Shailesh Kripalu Ayyangar 6.00 6.00 . 

23.60 10.40 . 23.60 10.40 

Sitting fees - Other than Whole Time Directors 
Mr, S.K. Bapat 0.92 0.34 . 
Mr Humayun Dhanrajgir 0.06 0.28 
Mr. Berjis Desai 0.82 0.28 

Mr. Samonnoi Banerjee 0,60 0.16 

Mr� P. S.Jayakumar 0.68 0.10 
Mr Shailesh Ayyangar 0.42 
Mr.Vijay keshav Gokhale 0.34 
Ms.Vidya Rajiv Yeravdekar 0.22 
Ms.Hitesh Jain 0.28 

4.34 1.16 

Rent expense 
Key Management Personnel: Whole Time Directors 
Mr, Sunil Mehta 0.37 0.33 

0.37 0.33 

Rent expense 
Key Management Personnel: Relatives 
Mr. Sanjay Mehta 0,37 0.33 
Mrs. Bhavana Mehta 0.27 0.24 

0.64 0.57 

Notes: 
{l) loans and Guarantees are given for the general business purposes of related parties. 

(2) Refer note 53 for demerger transaction entered with Avet lifescfences Private limited {formerly known as Avet lifesciences limited) pursuant to demerger scheme. 

(3) During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has invested Rs. 5.97 millions in Emcure Canada Inc, Emcure Canada Inc, was amalgamated with Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. pursuant to articles of 
amalgamation and amalgamation agreement dated August 13, 2021. 

(4) Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries and interest thereon are measured at amortised cost. The difference between the carrying amount and actual amount is accounted as net gain/ loss under c\hor 
income/ finance cost, as the case may be. Below are the details of actual amount of loan and interest receivable from subsidiaries: 

R<. In million 
Partlcul•rS Teriure or foa11 and Rate of lnteren lo3ns lnte,81. a.cattttd on lo.ans 

lnt•r...d ft 2, 31-Mor-2Z 3.l•M'i-r-.21 ll•M•r-22 .31•Mar•2.1 

Em(ute Nigeria limited 45 mon1h1 6% ·8 3% 59.13 57.04 38 60 32.02 
Emture Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Ltd 45 months 3.4%·9.5% 28.56 
Emcutt' Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC. 48 months 8 3%-9.5% 111.90 15.05 
f;ma,,e Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda. 45 months 5.4% • 9.22% 111.79 107.84 56.97 43.09 
fmr:u(a Pharma Mexico S.A. DE C,V. 45 months 8,3% • 9.22% 78.97 76.18 22.92 16.04 
Emcurl!' Pharma Peru S,A,C, 60 months 5.11%-9.5% 105.42 13.19 
Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. 36 months 4.37% · 5.03% 2,485.74 30.68 
Aval Ufesciences Private limited 60 months 8.50% 1.30 0.02 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 24 months 5,00% 1,032.07 
Emcure Pharma Chile SpA 36 months 5.83% 18,95 - 0,22 
Lazor Pharmaceuticals limited 36 months 5.37% 15.16 0.12 
Emcurn Pharmll UK Ud. 24 rnonths 4.31" 604.77 18.97 

Tot .. 1 1 316.07 3.SS0.19 118.83 197.62 

% of Loan till'@.11 to rehned oarties as% of tolill ltiiJnS 100" 100% - . 

(5) Also refer' hate no/4/ for the details of the collateral security and note no. 42(c) for the details of financial guarantee giverl Dy the C�inpany against the loans obtained by the subsidiaries. 

(6) All transactions with the related parties are priced on an arm's length basis, 

(7) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person{s) or entlty(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the company 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in olhe, 
persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements {continued) 
For the vear ended March 31, 2022 

Note 44: Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits 

a) Defined contribution plans 

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made as per local regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund/pension fund/other fund 
administered by the government The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation 

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has recognised the following amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year; 
Rt tnmllllon 

Particulars Year ended 
31-Mar-22 

Contribution to Employees Provident Fund 173.08 
Contribution to Employees Family Pension Fund 85.67 
Other defined contribution olan 35.73 
Total" 294.48 
"represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations. 

b) Post-employment obligations 

Gratuity 

Vear ended 
31-Mar-ll 

152.44 
85.61 
31.85 

269.90 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for 
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number 
of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes contributions to fund managed by life Insurance Corporation of India. Contributions are made as per the demands 
bv UC of India 

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, etc. 

c} Defined benefit plans 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet, profit or loss, other comprehensive income and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation are as follows: 
R<.lnmllllon 

Porticul •rs Ptcsant v.1lue cf Farr value. of-pl�n Tot;,! 
/\hljPMinn -·· 

As at Aprill, 2021 558.46 (483.26) 75.20 

Current service cost 97.85 97,85 
Transfer In/ (out) (23.09) 19.70 (3.39) 
Interest expenses/(income) 27.46 (25.75) 1.71 
Mortality charges and taxes 4 58 4.58 

Total amount recoJ?nised in Drofit and loss 102.22 11.471 100.75 

Remeasurement of: 
-Return on plan assets, excfudinc amounts included in 
interest expense/(income) 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses -experience (11,60) (11.60) 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses -financial assumptions . 1.47 1.47 

-Defined benefit obligations 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses-experience 15.28 15.28 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses - demographic changes 3.95 3.95 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses -financial assumptions 1.46 1.46 

Total amount recol!nised in othe.r comorehensive income 20.69 110.131 10.56 

Employer contribution . (81.82) (81.82) 
Benefit payments (65,16) 65.16 

As at March 31 2022 616.21 {511.521 104.69 

Rs tn mllllon 
Partlculars Prtffnl value of F'alr11alu of plan Total 

nht1--•-- --·-

As at Acrll 1 2020 496.81 1427.871 68..94 

Current service cost 95.72 . 95,72 
Interest expenses/(income) 26.44 (24.88) 1.56 
Mortality charges and taxes 4.61 4.61 

Total amount recoJ?nised in orofit and loss A 122,16 120.271 101.89 

Remeasurement of: 
-Return on plan assets, excfudinc amounts included in 
interest expense/(income) 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses -ex.perience (12.69) (12.59) 
Actuarial (gain}/ losses -financial ass':'mptions 5.72 5,72 

-Defined benefit obligations 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses -experience (0,99) (0.99) 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses -demographic changes (0.21) (0.21) 
Actuarial {gain)/ losses -financial assumptions 6.70 6.70 

Total amount recoe-nised in other comcrehensive Income 5.50 16.971 /1.471 

Employer contribution (75.90) (75.90) 
Benefit payments (66.01) 47.75 (18.26) 

As at March 31 2021 558.46 1483.261 75.20 
,,. represents amount m respect of continuing and discontinued ope�tions. 

I 



E MCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 44: Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits (continued) 

d} The net liobiHty disclosed above relating to funded plans ore os follows: 
Rs lnmllllon 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

Present value of obligation 616,21 558.46 
f.air value of olan assets 151L52l 1483.26) 
Deficit of funded clan 104.69 75.20 

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one off contributions. The Company intends to continue to contribute 

the defined benefit plans as per the demand from UC of India, 

Principal actuarial assumptions as at the reporting date: 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

a) Discount rate 6.10% 5.40% 
b) Expected rate of return on plan assets 5.40% 5.70% 

c) Salary escalation rate 9.00% 8.00% 
d) Withdrawal rate 

Field staff 30,00% 36.00% 
Factory staff 20.00% 20.00% 

el Mortal;tv table IALM/2012-141 ult IAlM/2012-14) ult 

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

e} Sensitivity analysis: 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions , holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligations by the 

amounts shown below, 
Rs inmllllon 

Change In assumption lmoact on deOne<I benefit obll•atlon 

lnaease In assumotion Oecnas.e lnassumotlon 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

Discount rate by 1% (Mar 31, 2021: 1%) (24.83) (21.72) 26.99 23,57 
Salary escalation rate by 1% (Mar 31, 2021: 1%) 20.20 17.53 (18,97) (16.50) 
Withdrawal rate by 1% (Mar 31, 2021 : 1%) (3.45) (2.77) 3.72 2.96 

Assumptions regarding future mortality for gratuity benefit is set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in the domicile country of the company. 

fl Risk exposure 
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed 

Asset volatility: 

ii) Changes in bond yields: 

iii) Future salary escalation and inflation risk: 

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, 

this will create a deficit. All assets are maintained with fund managed by UC of India, 

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities. 

Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities 

especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this 

increasin,g risk. 

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the company is successfully able to 

neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence company is encouraged to adopt asset•liability management. 

The Company's assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by public sector insurance company via, UC of India, LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing consistent and 

competitive returns over the years. 

g) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions 

The Company has agreed that it will aim to eliminate the deficit in gratuity plan over the years. Funding levels are assessed by LIC on annual basis and the Company makes contribution as per 

the instructions received from LIC. The Company compares the expected contribution to the plan as provided by actuary with the instruction from UC and assesses whether any additional 

contribution may be required. The Company considers the future expected contribution will not be significantly increased as compared to actual contribution. 

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for next year is Rs. 105.00 million (March 31, 2021- Rs. 75.00 million). 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.18 years (March 31, 2021: 4A1 years), The following benefits payments are expected to be paid: 

Rs lnmllllon 

l<'SS lhon 1 rear bl!t"wee.n 1-2 yeil� between 2-S rear$ over S years Total 

March 31, 2022 
befinecl bene1it ob!iP.ation -.eratuitv -139.84 114.00 32035 424,84 99B.03 

March 31, l021 

UC!fined lx:,efit abliea.tion - .eratuitv 124.21 115.28 ;i;s.12 316.29 83.3.90 

h) Major pion assets 

Rs lnmTillon 

Asat Asat 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

Unouoted Unauoted 
Investment funds 

-Insurance Funds (UC Pension and Group Schemes fund) 511.52 483.26 

Total 511.52 483.26 

l 
The category wise details of the plan assets ts not available as it's mamtained by UC 

f1l .j 

.I •

-,�"-/r.l,v :,.., 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Special purpose Interim Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 45: Employees stock option plan 

As at March 31, 2022, the Company has the following share-based payment arrangement: 

Share option plans (equity settled) 
"Emcure ESOS 2013": The Board vide its resolution granted employee stock options as under to the eligible employees under "Emcure ESOS 2013" in compliance with the provisions of the applicable law and rules 

framed 1h01 ···--'-,. 
Resolution dc1te Tranche No Grant Date Original Exercise Total Options Revised Exercise 

Prire. Gra .. +,.r1 Price# 
10-0ct-13 Tranche - 01 01-0ct-13 221.2s· 22,70,000 165,07 
14-Mar-16 Tranche - 02 14-Mar-16 508 75 5,80,000 452.57 
07-Jul-17 Tranche - 03 0 7 -Jul-17 300.00 1,00,000 243.82 
Ol-Nov-18 Tranche - 04 01-Nov-18 522.00 8,40,000 465.82 
Ol-Dec-18 Tranche - OS 01-Dec-18 522.00 2,40,000 465 82 
Ol-Feb-19 Tranche - 06 01-Feb-19 522.00 2,30,000 465.82 
06-Jun-19 Tranche - 07 06-Jun-19 522 00 6,25,000 465 82 
08-Nov-19 Tranche - 08 08-Nov-19 580 00 4,55,000 523,82 

04-Feb-20 Tranche - 09 04-Feb-20 580,00 70,000 523.82 
22-Jul-20 Tranche - 10 2 2 -Jul-20 620.00 1,80,000 563.82 

09-Nov-20 Tranche -11 09-Nov-20 620,00 40,000 563.82 

27-May-21 Tranche -12 27-May-21 918,25 3,40,000 862 07 
22-Feb-22 Tranche -13 22-Feb-22 1 DOD.OS I 10 000 NIA 

•ourmg the year ended Morch 31, 2016, the company hod issued bonus shares to ,ts shatt!hold�rs m the rot10 of 3:1. Correspondingly, proportionate adjustment hos been mode by increasing the number of options 

granted ond reducing exercise price per option. Boord of directors vide resolution doted January 29, 2016 hove approved the adjustments to options granted. 

II Pursuant to Composite scheme of arrangement os disclosed in note 53, the exercise price of ESOP's outstanding was revised. The fair value of such options post modification of exercise price is lower than fair 

wluntlrm o · -••-'-n · b lhf,- ri1odill�a1inn '"'--dr.trr/k "'' m-'r' __ .., innuu far m00.1.'rrhllO fftt'ffm,.nrol fair, vnfot: tltl! nf 1-t .. h'tl,v• 
Sr. Particulars Julv 25 2021 
... Ootions outstandinll' 17 BS 000 
b. Exoected orice volatilitv of the comoanv's sh,ue� 27.59% - 37.32% 
c.. Exnected dividend vield 1.00% 
d. Risk free interest rate 3.4S%~4-69% 
.. Ekoected life of ootions o.s2-2.84 

The eligible employees, including directors, are determined by the Remuneration Committee from time to time. These options will vest over period of 3 to S years from the grant date and are subject to the condition 

of continued service of the employees. 

Once vested the option can be exercised within 5 years from date of Initial Public Offer (IPO). The exercise price of the options is equal to fair market value of the shares as determined by an independent valuer as at 

grant dates If IPO does not take place or shares are not listed within 2 years from the date of grant, Remuneration committee at its sole discretion, subject to prior approval of the Company's shareholders' can settle 
the vested options in cash or allow exercise of option before listing at a price arrived at by an independent valuer. However no options have been settled in cash or allowed to be exercised till March 31, 2022, 

Options granted under this scheme carry no dividend or voting rights, When exercised, one option is convertibfe into one equity share. 

Mov«m�nl o thl!' ootlons or.une.d under I "" liiln Ill b lo . w, 

March 31,, 2022 Grant Date Balance as on Grant during the Cancelled during Exercised during Balance as on Exercisable Revised Exffdse 

Ot-Am-21 ..... th• .. •ar ...... -.. 3.l-Mar-22 Pric� 

Tranche - 01 Ol-Oct-13 9,00,000 (1,70,000) 7,30,000 - 165.07 
Tranche - 02 14-Mar-16 60,000 - 60,000 452 57 
Tranche - 06 01-Feb-19 30,000 30,000 - 465.82 
Tranche - 07 06-Jun-19 1,30,000 - 1,30,000 - 465.82 

Tranche - 08 08-Nov-19 1,85,000 - 1,85,000 523.82 

Tranche - 09 04-Feb-20 70,000 (60,000) 10,000 523 82 
Tranche - 10 22-Jul-20 1,80,000 - 1,80,000 563,82 
Tranche - 11 09-Nov-20 40,000 40,000 563,82 
Tranche - 12 27-May-21 3,40,000 3,40,000 862,07 

Tranche - 13 22-Feb-22 l 10 ODO 110 000 1 000,05 
Ta-tat/ Weir.hted averaPe exercise orice 15 95 000 4 SO 000 17 30 ODOl 18 15 000 469,14 

March 31, 2021 Grant Date 8-aJanC.emon Grant during the Cancelled durinr Exercised durin& BaJance as on Exerdsable Exercise Price 
01-Aor,20 ve.ar th111 vear• the vear �l-Mar-21 

Tranche - 01 01-0ct-13 12,10,000 (3,10,000) 9,00,000 221.25 

Tranche - 02 14-Mar-16 60,000 - 60,000 508.75 
Tranche - 04 O l -Nov-18 8,40,000 (B,40,000) 522,00 
Tranche - OS 01-0ec-18 2,40,000 (2,40,000) 522.00 

Tranche - 06 Ol-Feb-19 1,40,000 - (1,10,000) 30,000 522.00 
Tranche - 07 06-Jun-19 6,25,000 - 14,95,000) 1,30,000 522.00 
Tranche - 08 08-Nov-19 4,55,000 (2,70,000) 1,85,000 580.00 
Tranche - 09 04-Feb-20 70,000 . 70,000 580,00 
Tranche - 10 2 2 -Jul-20 1,80,000 1,80,000 - 620,00 
Tranche - 11 09-Nov-20 40 000 . 40 000 620.00 
Total/ WeiPhted averaPe exercise nrice 36 40 000 2 20 000 ,,, 65 0001 15 95 000 no.59 

•ESOP'1 cancelled during the year include 1,815,000 options cancelled due to the proposed Composrte Sthe'me of arrangement as referred m note 53 a( the standalone financial statements with mulu.11 agreeable 

terms and conditions with employees, 

·:. .b 

r. * ,'
PU\'{�"'.., ,, 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Special purpose Interim Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 45: Employees stock option plan (continued) 

No options have expired or exercised during the periods covered in the above table 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options as at year end is 6.00 Years (March 31, 2021: 7 17 Years) 

Fair value of equity settled share based payment arrangements: 

450,000 employee stock options were granted during the year ended March 31, 2022, The fair value as at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, 

term of option, share price at grant date, expected price volatility of underlying share, expected dividend yield and risk free interest rate far the term of option, 

Thci mod"l lnr>uts rorc01ion1 [!rJnted dutinti: iho v-trilrendl!':d M,nch 31 :zon. uiclud od '

Sr. Particu.Jars Tranche� 12 Tranche-13 
a Ootions Prat,ted 3 40 000 110000 
b. hercise Price Rs. 918..25 1 000 OS 
(. Share Price ate.rant date 91!L25 1 000 OS 
d. Oite of P.rant 27-Mav-21 22-�eb-22 
e. heeded orke v.olatilitv of the comoanv·s shares 34.54% 33,60% 
f Exnected dividend v�kf LOO% 1.00% 

., Risk.free interest rate 5.38% 5 .75% 
h. l:xc�cted life of ootions 3.00 3 .00 

2,20,000 employee stock options were granted during the year ended March 31, 2021 The fair value as at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, 

term of option, share price at grant date, expected price volati/rty of underlying share, expected dividend yield and risk free interest rate for the term of option. 

1hr mo1fol lnnuu for o tlons �ranted durinet lhQ ... c-.-r�nded Millrth 31 201] fnduded; 
Sr::� Puticular.s Tran.ch@ -10 tranche-11 
a, Ootians e.ranted 1 80 000 40 000 
b. Exercise Price Rs... 620.00 620.00 
C. Share Price at Prant date 620.00 620.00 
d. Date of 1?rant 22•Jul•20 09-Nov-20 
•. Exoected orice volatilitv of the comoanv's shares 33.93¾ 34..21% 
f. Exoecte.d dividend vield 1.00% 1.00% 

.. Ris.k free interest rate 3.92% 4.32¾ 
h. bnt>-e(e� lffo: of ontions 3.14 3 08 

Volatilrty is a measure of the movement in the prices of the underlying assets, Since the Company is an unlisted Company, volatility of similar listed entrties has been considered. Expected volatilrty has been based on 

an evaluatlon of the historical volatilfty of the similar listed entitles (peers) share price, particularly over the historical period commensurate with the expected term. The expected term of the instrument has been 

based on historical experience and 2eneral option holder behaviour. 

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss: 
Rs.fnmllrlon 

3J-Mar•22 31-Mar•Zl 

32.63 26.05 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 46: Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Revenue recognised from contracts with customers 

Other operating revenue 

Total 

Disaggregation of revenue 

Based on markets 

Within India 

Outside India 

a, Europe 

b, North America 

c, Other continents 

Total 

Revenue from continuing operations 

Revenue from discontinued operations 

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the 

beginning of the year 

A) There is no significant change in the contract liabilities. 

Rs in million 

Year ended Year ended 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

33,789,25 31,272,04 

83,17 264,60 

33,872.42 31,536.64 

19,630,70 15,168,37 

3,760,60 2,725.52 

1,596,56 2,477,97 

8,884.56 11,164,78 

33,872.42 31,536.64 

33,872.42 31,074.13 

462.51 

237.47 28,45 

B) The Company satisfies its performance obligations pertaining to the sale of goods at point in time when the control of goods is actually transferred to the customers, No 

significant judgment is involved in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods, The contract with customers are generally fixed price contract (except 

for contracts with subsidiaries, wherein there is variable consideration) subject to refund due to returns and do not contain any financing component. The payment is 

generally due within 7-180 days, The Company is obliged for returns/refunds due to expiry & saleable returns, There are no other significant obligations attached in the 

contract with customer. 

C) There is no significant judgement involved in ascertaining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligation and in evaluating when a customer obtains control of 

promised goods. Transaction price ascertained for the performance obligation of the Company is agreed in the contract with the customer. Further, the variable 

consideration is an estimate amount arrived by using expected value method. 

D) Reconciliation of contract price with revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss: 

Rs. in million 

Particulars 31-Mar•22 31-Mar-21 
Contract price 34,516,00 32,205.77 

Less: 

Amount recognised as sales returns & breakage expiry (739.10) (878,87) 

Allowance for interest loss 12.35 (54,86) 

Revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss 33,789.25 31,272.04 

Major customer 

Revenue from nllomed Laboratories Limited which caters 'Europe' segment is Rs, 3,433.24 millions which is more than 10% of the Company's total revenue for the year 

ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 2,734.36 million), 

Revenue from Emcure Pharma Peru SAC. which caters 'other continents' segment is Rs. 3,320,68 millions which is more than 10% of the Company's total revenue for the 

year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 820.19 million), 



EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements {continued} 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 47: Assets pledged as security 

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are; 

Pattkulan 
Current 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables 
Other current financial assets 

Non-financial assets 
Inventories 
Other current assets 
As.s.eu das.sififtd ,u: held for 1ale 

Tot.JI cufr<mt asset! a1edred as sec.urltv 

Non Current 

Financial assets 
Deposits with banks 
Investments 

Non-ftnancla\ assets 

Property, plant, equipment, leasehold land, intangible 
assets ;md capital work-in-progress 

Tot.11 ncn-current a5sets oled2cd as securltv 
TotaJ assets nledPed as securitv 

Additional disclosure required by Schedule Ill 

Rs lnmitlian 

Note 31-Mar-22 ll-Mar-21 

llA 309.23 2,455.58 
11B 165.99 151.67 
10 10,090,92 9,994.25 
12 1,834.48 2,080 49 

9 7,304.42 6,217.74 
13 1,655,45 1,127.06 
14 127.80 

21 360.49 22.154.59 

7 19.51 21.74 

5 3,110.08 7,689,67 

2A, 28, 3, 4 13,077.03 13,037.00 

16 206.62 20 748.41 

37 567.11 42 903.00 

As disclosed above, the Company has availed loans from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company file statement of current assets with the bank on periodical basis, There 
difference between the statements filed by the Company and the books of accounts of the Company are as below; 

Quarter ended Name of Bank Particulars Amount as per Amount as Amount of Reason for difference or 
books reported in difference discrepancies 

of account the quarterly 
return 

30 June 2020 Bank of Baroda Bank of Maharashtra and Axis Bank lnventorv 4 744.11 5 252.00 1507.89\ Refer fcotnote 1 below 
30 June 2020 Bank of Baroda Bank of Maharashtra and Axis Bank ReceivablM 11 032.28 7 412.61 3 619,67 Refer footnote 2 below 
30June 2020 Bank of Baroda Ba.nk of Maharashtra and Axis Bank Pavables 3 904.02 1 932.28 1 971.74 Refer footnote 3 below 
30 S.ot•mber 2020 Bank of Baroda Bank of Maharashtra and Axis .Bank lnventorv 5 574.19 5 517-56 56.63 Refer footnote 1 below 
30 Seotember 2020 Bank of Baroda Bank of Maharashtra and Axis Bank Rec.eivables 13 200.55 10 134.63 3 065.92 Refer footnote 2 below 
30 Seotember 2020 Bank of Baroda Bank. of Maharashtra and Axis Bank Pavables 6 031.71 3 435.94 2 595.77 Re.fer footnote 3 be.low 
31 December 2020 Bank of Ba rod• Bank of M•huashlra and Axi• Bank lnventorv 6 298.08 6 785.47 (48739\ Refer footnote 1 bl!low 
31 December 2020 B•nk of Baroda Bank of Mahamhm and Axis Bank Receivables 11 287.95 9 22037 2 067.58 Refer footnote 2 below 
31 December 2020 Bank of Baroda Bank of Maharashtra and Axis Bank P•vable• 7 216.74 4 779.87 2.436.87 Refer footnote 3 below 
31 March 2021 J3,ank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank and State Inventory 6,217,74 6,027.68 190.06 Refer footnote 1 below 

IB�nk of Jndia 
31 March 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank and State Receivables 9,994.25 9,230.80 763.45 Refer footnote 2 below 

B::i.nlt rif lnrii;1 
31 March 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank and State Payables 5,742.86 3,783.77 1,959.09 Refer footnote 3 below 

IBaok of ll'ldi::i, 
30 June 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Inventory 6,879.24 6,631.26 247.98 Refer footnote 1 below 

of Ind/a and Standatd Ch,,,.-t<>red Bank 
30 June 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Receivables 10,885.99 9,295.00 1,590.99 Refer footnote 2 below 

of India and Stand 1rrl rhart"r,...I R;mk 
30 June 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Payables 4,223.53 2,565.39 1,658.14 Refer footnote 3 below 

of India anrl <:.t•rndard rh;uti>rPd Rank 
30 September 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Inventory 7,548.00 7,527.34 20.66 Refer footnote 1 below 

of Jndia Standard Chartered Bank and HDFC Bank 
30 September 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Receivables 9,073.17 9,502.73 (429.56) Refer footnote 2 below 

of lnd!a Standard Chartered Bank and HDFC Bank 
.30 September 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Payables 5,844.70 3,375.69 2,469.01 Refer footnote 3 below 

of lndi� Starid;u-d Chart,:,,red Bank ::iond HOFC'. Rank 
31 December 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra1 Axis Sank, State Bank Inventory 7,461.27 7,257.16 204.11 Refer footnote 1 below 

of India Standard rL.-... �r,.rl R::i.nk a.nd HDFC R:::ink 
.31 December 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Receivables 8,433,57 8,810.07 (376.50) Refer footnote 2 below 

of lodia c:.tandard Chartered Bank and HDFC Bank 
31 December 2021 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra1 Axis Bank, State Bank Payables 5,659.42 3,606-96 2,052.46 Refer footnote 3 below 

lot India. Standard Chartered Bank and HDFC Bank 
31 March 2022 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Inventory 7,304.42 7,031.34 273.08 Refer footnote 1 below 

of India, Standard Chartered Bank, Citibank NA and HDFC 
lll-. ... 1,1:-i+,..,4 

31 March 2022 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Receivables 10,090.92 10,512.99 (422.07) Refer footnote 2 below 
of India, Standard Chartered Bank, Citibank NA and HDFC 

lo,"• 
31 March 2022 Bank of Baroda, Bank of Maharashtra, Axis Bank, State Bank Payables 6,013.69 3,798.82 2,214.87 Refer footnote 3 below 

of India, Standard Chartered Bank, Citibank NA and HDFC 
" ,. 

:-ootnc�.::s: Major differences between the standalone financial Statements and the Information sJ�mit�.:;J to the Banks are on account of: 

Note 1: Inventories reported to the Bank includes balances of closing GST input credit recc:ivable, doc:s not include inventories of consumables and entries considered in the Books 
of Accounts post submission of information. 

� 

Note 2: Certain Trade Receivables are excluded while reporting to the bank on account of specified sanction terms, entries considered in the Books of Accounts post submission of 
information and provisions accounted in the Financial Statements does not form part of the information submitted. 

Note 3: Items of Trade Payables like provisions and accruals are excluded while reporting to the bank on account of specified sanction terms and entries p 
Accounts post submission of quarterly statements do not form part of the information reported in the statements submitted. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 48: Segment reporting 

The measurement of each segment's revenues, expenses and assets is consistent with the accounting policies that are used in preparation of the Company's consolidated financial 
statements. Accordingly, segment information has been provided only in the consolidated financial statements 

Note 49 : Expenditure on research and development 

The total expenditure incurred on Research and Development including in house Research and Development during the year is as follows; 
Rs in million 

Particular,; 31-Mar-22 31-Mar -21 

Revenue 1,494.78 1,238.33 
capitol 43.38 12.32 
Total� 1538.16 1250.65 

R&D expenditure. as a% of revenue from operations" 4.54% 3.97"/4 

,.. represents amount m respect of continuing •:ind discontinued operations. 

Note 50: Information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

The information regarding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company. 

RS'. In million 
Particular< 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

I) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
each accounting year 

a. Principal outstanding and not overdue as per MSME act 216.44 17.21 
b. Principal outstanding and overdue as per MSME act and interest due thereon 

ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 35.23 
Development Ac'-, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year 

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding the 
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 0.02 0.14 

v) The amount of further interest remaining du� and paVi]b!e even in the succeeding years, until such date . 

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a 

deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

Note 51 : Indirect tax refund received 

The Company is entitled to receive subsidy in the form of proportionate refund of GST paid in cash (i.e. other than utilising input credit) by its unit at Jammu and Sikkim respectively. The 
subsidy is available up to March 2026. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to this grant. 

Note 52 : Corporate social responsibility 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, 
healthcare and ensuring environmental sustainability. Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 are as mentioned below: 

Rs in mllllon 

Panlculars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

(a) amount required to be spent by the company for the year 75.57 60.18 

(b) amount of expenditure incurred till date; 
Paid 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset . 

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 77.29 64.77 
Yet to be paid 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 
Total 77.29 64.77 

{c) shortfall at the end of the year -

{d) reason for shortfall N/A N/A 

(e) total of previous years shortfall 0.84· 0.84• 

(f) nature of CSR activities Promoting Healthcare, Promoting Healthcare, 

Education, Rural Education & Rural 
development projects, development projects 

Environment Sustainabili�y 
& Training to promote 

" . ..... rural and/or nationa11y . �- . 

.. 
recognised sports 

. . . .. 
• There was..shortfaJI of Rs. 0.84 m1lhon for spending towards CSR act1v1t1es for the financial year 2019-20, due- to non-1dent1f1cat1on of feasible projects during the said period . 

,, 

I 
J 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICAL5 LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 53: Composite Scheme of arrangement/ discontinued operations 

The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on November 09, 2020, had approved Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Emcure Pharmaceuticals limited 
("Demerged Company") and Avet Lifesciences Limited ("Resulting Campany") and their respective shareholders ('Scheme') which was filed before the National Company Law Tribunal 
("NCLT"), Mumbai, on November 30, 2020, for demerger of the Company's United States of America ('US') market business and vesting the same into the Resulting Company, under 
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 52, section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Composite Scheme of arrangement has been approved by NCLT 
on June 4, 2021 with an appointed date of April 01, 2021, 

Accounting of Demerger as per approved Composite Scheme: 
(i) the Company reduced the book values of assets, liabilities and reserves of the US market business as at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the Demerger 
Appointed Date in its books of accounts. Reserves such as Capita[ reserve, Securities premium, General Reserve and Retained earnings are reduced in the proportions of net assets 
transferred to the Resulting Company; 

(ii) the carrying value of the investment in equity shares and loans of the Resulting Entity to the extent held by the Company amounting to Rs.1.40 million were cancelled; and 

(iii) the Company made an adjustment equal to the difference between net assets transferred and reserves, first in the capital Reserve to the extent available, thereafter in the 
Securities Premium to the extent available and residual balance in the General Reserve under the head "Other Equity". 

The book value of assets, liabilities and reserves transferred are as under: 

Rs In mllllon 

Particulars 31-Mar-2Z 

Property, plant and equipment 2.22 
Financial assets - Investments 3,306.69 

Financial assets - Loans 2,485.74 

Financial assets - Other non-current financial assets 30.70 

Financial assets -Trade receivables 1,587.37 
Financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents 2,050.00 
Financial assets - Other current financial assets 483.26 
Total Assets (Al 9 945.98 

Deferred tax liabilities (10.65) 
Financial liabilities - Trade payables 107,27 

Financial liabilities - Other current financial liabilities 0-36 
Current provisions 2.52 
Total liabilities (Bl 99-50 

Equity (A-8) 9,846.48 

The Company has presented the US market Business as discontinued operations during the year ended March 31, 2022 in accordance with Ind AS 105 and accordingly reclassified the 
comparative financial information of the previous year presented as below: 

(a) Results of discontinued operations 

Panlailars 

Rcvenuei 
R.eve.ntJe from operations 
Other income 
Total Income 

Expenses: 
Cost of materials consumed 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Employee benefit expenses 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Finance cost 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 
Profit before exceptional items and tax 
Exceptional items 
loss before tax 

Ta,c expenses 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Loss for the ye_ar 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss 

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total comprehensive income for the vear 

(b) The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operations are as follows: 

• c. P?.rticulars 
Operating activities 
lnvesi.ing activities 
Financing activities 
Net cash (inflow)/ outflow 

(c) Appointed date and effective date accounting 

31-Mar-22 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

31-Mar-22 

31-Mar-21 

462.51 
153.86 
616.37 

46.88 
38.18 
70.42 
20.27 
SO.SB 

273.10 

499.43 

116.94 

137.63 
lZ0.69) 

(5.21) 
0.72 

(4.49) 

(16.20) 

-

(16.20) 

31-Mar-21 

54.65 

(50.58) 
4.07 

Had this not been an NCLT approved Scheme, the effect of scheme would have been given on July 25, 2021 instead of April 01, 2021 and the total revenue for the year 
31, 2022 would have been higher by Rs. 509.57 million and the total expenses would have been higher by Rs. 223,97 Million. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 54: Ratios as per the Schedule Ill requirements 

(a) C urrcnt at10--: urrent R . C 
Paniculars 

Current Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Ratio 

A ssets 

% change from 31 March 2021 

v, e >V urrent di"d d bC 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

l' b"II. 1a , ·tu.?s 

(bl Debt Eauitv ratio/ Gearfne ratio= Total debt divided bv Total eauitv 
Pantcular.. 
Total debt 

Total equity 

Ratio 
% change from 31 March 2021 

Reason for change more than 25%: 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

21,360.49 22,154,59 

19,340.64 17,891.80 

1.10 1.24 

-11% 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
15,737.89 16,033.85 

17,125.29 23,017.72 

0.92 0.70 
32% 

Pursuant to demerger, the Company transferred reserves amounting to Rs. 9,846.48 million, which lead to reduction in total equity as on March 31, 2022 and is the main 

reason for variations noted above. 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Debt Service.Covera•e Ratio= EarninRs available for debt servites divided by Total Interest Lease payments and •rlncipaf repayments 
Panlculars 
Profit for the year 

Add: Depreciation and amonizations, 

Add: Finance cost, 

Add: (Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Earnings available for debt services 
Finance cost paid, 

Lease payments 

Principal repayments (including certain prepayments) 

Total Interest and Principal repayments 
Ratio 
% change from previous year 

, represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations, 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

31-Mar-22 
4,468.11 

1,657.92 

1,451.37 

(1.30) 

7,576.10 
1,313.72 

161.17 

2,134.69 

3,609.58 
2.10 
15% 

Return on Eauitv Ratio 1 Return on Investment Ratio= Profit for the vear divided by avera•e eaultv 
Particulars 
Profit for the year 

Average equity 

Ratio 
% change from previous year 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

Ti nventorv umover atto:: ost o· P.oo s so IV e )V averaP.e nventorv R • C d ld d' Id d b  
Partlculars 
Cost of goods sold*' 

Average Inventory 

Ratio 
% change from previous year 

, represents amount in respect of continuing and d,scontinued operations. 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

, ' 
' . .

31•Mar-22 
4,468.11 

20,071.51 

22% 
12% 

31-Mar-22 
13,188.91 
6,761.08 

1.95 
-17% 

31-Mar-21 
4,204.75 

1,562.35 

1,233.41 

(6.15) 

6,994.36 
1,186.96 

127.02 

3,943.52 

5,257.50 
1.33 

31-Mar-21 
4,204.75 

21,081.61 

20% 

31-Mar-21 
12,463.97 

5,327.18 

2.34 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

(f) 

(g) 

(h) 

(I) 

0) 

Trade Receivable.s turnover ratio= Revenue from ooer.atlons lc.xcludin• other ooeratin• revenuel divided bv averaee trade receivables 
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
Revenue from operations• " 33,872.42 31,536,64 
Less: other operating revenue ,.. (83.17) (264.60) 
Net sales 33,789.25 31,272.04 
Average Trade Receivables 10,042.59 10,688.59 
Ratio 3.36 2.93 
% change from previous year 15% 

"'represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations. 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

Trade oavables turnover ratio= Credlt'ourchases divided bv averaee tradeoavables 
Partkulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
Credit Purchases• ' 20,587.27 19,776.67 
Average Trade Payables 5,878,28 5,064.55 
Ratio 3.50 3.90 
% change from previous year -10% 

11 represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations. 

Reason for change m ore than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

Net caoital Turnover Ratio= Net sales divided bv Net Workinff Capita! fwhereas net workine caoitaf = currenl assets• current liabllltlesl 
Particula� 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
Net Sales• 33,789.25 31,272.04 
Net working capital 2,019.85 4,262.79 
Ratio 16.73 7.34 
% change from previous year 128% 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Pursuant to demerger, the Company transferred receivables amounting to Rs. 2,017.93 million and also took additional cash credit to pay Rs. 2,050 million to Avet 

Lifesciences Limited which lead to significant reduction in net working capital. Hence ratio for year ended March 31, 2022 is not comparable with year ended March 31, 

2021. 

fi f h Net ore 11 ratio= Pro ,t or t e vear d ivided bv net sales. 
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
Profit for the year 4,468.11 4,204.75 
Net Sales• 33,789.25 31,272.04 
Ratio 13% 13% 
% change from previous year -2% 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

R.ewm on caoital emoloved = EBIT divided bv Caoital Emo loved {total eaultv olus debt and deferred tax liabilitvl 
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
Profit for the year 4,468.11 4,204.75 
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense' 1,657.92 1,562.35 
Add: Finance costs ' 1,451.37 1,233.41 
Add: Tax expenses' 1,696.12 1,369.73 
EBITDA 9,273.52 8,370.24 
EBIT 7,615.60 6,807.89 

Total equity 20,071.51 21,081.61 
Deferred tax liability 297.02 280.09 

Non-current borrowings 5,123.96 6,459.74 
Current borrowings 10,613.93 9,574.11 
Total debt 15,737.89 16,033.85 

EBIT 7,615.60 6,807.89 
Capital Employed 36,106.42 37,395.55 
Ratio 21% 18% 
% change from previous year 16% 

,... represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations. 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Change is not more than 25%. 

) 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 55 : Impact of COVID-19 pandemic 

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. The Company has adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to 
protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption. The Company has considered internal and external information while finalizing 
various estimates in relation to its financial statement captions upto the date of approval of the Statements by the Board of Directors. The actual impact of the global 
health pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated, as the COVID -19 situation evolves in India and globally. The Company will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 

Note 56 : Code of Social Security 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the 
impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code. 

Note 57 : Initial Public Offering ("IPO") 

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus ('DRHP') with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), and an 
application for In-principle approval from BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") in connection with proposed Initial Public Offering 
("IPO") of its equity shares. The Company has received observation letter dated December D8, 2021 from SEBI, which is valid for 12 months. The Company has also received 
In-principle approval from BSE & NSE on August 30, 2021 & September 08, 2021 respectively. 

Note 58 : Events occurring after the March 31, 2022 

There are no significant events subsequent to year ended March 31, 2022. 

Note 59 : Authorisation of Standalone Financial statements 

The standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 4, 2022. 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 
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Pune - 41 I 00 I. India 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Telephone: +91 20 6747 7300 
Fax: -,.912067477310 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement 
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on 
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were 
audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group 
as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in 
equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant 
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the 
other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the "Other Matters" section below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

BS R & Co la partnership firm with Registration No BA61223I converted into BS R & Co LLP 
(a L1m1ted L1abil1ty Pannershp with LLP Reg1strat1on No AAB-8181J with ettect from October 14, 2013 

Registered Office: 

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4 Nesr.o 
Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon !Eastl, Mumbai - 400063 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report-31 March 2022 (continued) 

Emphasis of matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the uncertainty
related to the ultimate outcome of the Search and Seizure operation conducted by the Income Tax
Department. The Group has not received any demand notices in relation to the Search and Seizure as at
this date. Management is confident that no taxes will devolve on the Group and hence no provision has
been recognised in these consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2022. Though the Group has
not received any demand notice till date, the uncertainty in the matter remains till the proceedings are
concluded.

2. We draw attention to Note 60 to the consolidated financial statements regarding the Scheme of Demerger
between Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, A vet Lifesciences Limited and their respective Shareholders
('Scheme') which has been described in the aforesaid note. The Scheme has been approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT') vide its order dated 4 June 2021 with appointed date of 1 April 2021
and a certified copy has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, on 25
July 2021. In accordance with the scheme approved by NCL T, the Company has given effect to the
Scheme from the retrospective appointed date specified therein i.e. 1 April 2021 which overrides the
relevant requirements of Ind AS 103 (according to which the scheme would have been accounted for
from 25 July 2021 which is the date of acquisition as per the aforesaid standard). The financial impact of
the aforesaid treatment has been disclosed in the aforesaid note.

3. We draw attention to Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the uncertainty
related to the ultimate outcome of the Arbitration proceedings filed against Gennova Biopharmaceuticals
Limited ('Gennova') in the London Court of International Arbitration and the lawsuit filed against
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited ('the Company') in the United States District Court - Seattle Division
by HOT Bio Corp. ("HOT") in the matter relating to the COVID vaccine being developed by Gennova.
The uncertainty in the matter, including financial impact, if any, will remain till the proceedings are
concluded. Given the uncertainty of outcome of the proceedings, the merits of HDT's claims can neither
be fully assessed at present nor the possible loss or range of loss, if any, that may result from the
proceedings can be estimated. Accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these financial
statements as at 31 March 2022.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Other Information 

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of 
other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report- 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company. and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and 
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of each company. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report- 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this
regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section titled "Other Matters" in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report-31 March 2022 (continued) 

Other Matters 

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 12 subsidiaries whose financial
statements I financial information reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 22,664.13
million as at 31 March 2022, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 17,566.41 million
and net cash flows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 1.00 million for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit
reports of the other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries which are located outside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company's management has
converted the financial statements / financial information of these subsidiaries located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company's
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located
outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the
management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

(b) The financial statements / financial information of subsidiaries whose financial statements / financial
information reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,354.99 million as at 31 March
2022, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,396.11 million and net cash outflows
(before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. (73.27) million for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, have not been audited either by us or by other
auditors. These unaudited financial statements /financial information have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of
Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements / financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements / financial information are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements I financial information certified by the 
Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report-31 March 2022 (continued) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the "Other Matters" paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
3 I March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted in the "Other Matters" paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

b. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report- 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

d. (i) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act

have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the best of their

knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 48 to the accounts, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any

other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly

or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(ii) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act

have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best

of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 48 to accounts, no funds have been

received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to my/ our or other auditors' notice that has caused me/us
or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule

I l (c) contain any material mis-statement.

e. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Holding company and one of its subsidiaries,

which is a company incorporated in India, during the year and until the date of this audit

report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.
The final dividend paid by the Holding company and one of its subsidiaries, which is a

company incorporated in India, during the year in respect of the same declared for the

previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it
applies to payment of dividend.

As stated in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Holding company and one of its subsidiaries, which is a company incorporated in India, have
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123

of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.
Further, one subsidiary of the Holding company, which is a company incorporated in India,

neither paid any interim dividend during the year nor final dividend in respect of the same
declared for the previous year and its Board of Directors did not propose any final dividend
for the year.



BSR&Co.LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditor's Report-31 March 2022 (continued) 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
reports of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India, the 

remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration 
paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, is not in excess of the 

limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed 
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

Place: Pune 
Date: 12 May 2022 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm's Registration No.101248W /W-100022 

�g{_e)A 
Abhishek 

Partner 

Membership No. 062343 
UDIN: 22062343AIWNHQ3789 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report on Consolidated financial statements - 31 March 

2022 (Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 

section of our report of even date) 

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 

Holding Company on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report 

the following: 

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

qualifications or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 reports of the

Companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements.

Pune 
12 May 2022 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 

��u'>t'�e.M 
Abhisbek 

Partner 

Membership No: 0622343 
ICAI UDIN: 22062343AIWNHQ3789 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' report on the consolidated financial statements of Emcure 
Pharmaceuticals Limited for the period ended 31 March 2022. 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A) (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding 
Company") and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its 
subsidiary companies, as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary 

companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 

financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, 

based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidate financial statements criteria established 

by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the 

criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

20 I 3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 

the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 

financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects. 



BSR&Co.LLP 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Auditors' Responsibility (continued) 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining 

an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 

of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 

includes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated 

financial statements. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2022 (continued) 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial 

Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 

the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate. 

Place: Pune 

Date: 12 May 2022 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 101248W/ W-100022 

ojswg{eA 
Abhishek 

Partner 

Membership No: 062343 

UDIN: 22062343AIWNHQ3789 



FMCURE PHARMACEUTIC,\! S LIMITED 
(onsolidated Financial Statements 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Assets 
Non-current assets 

Property, plant ar;d equipment 
Capital work•in-progress 
Right-of -use assets 
Goodwill 
Other Intangible assets 
Intangible assets under development 

Financial assets 
i) Investment::; 
ii) Other non current financial as:!>ets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Income tax assets {net) 
Other non-current assets 

Total non- current �:liSeU 

Current assets 
Inventories 

Financial assets 
i) Trade receivables 
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
iv) Other current financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Total assets 

Equity and liabilities 
Equity 

Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Equity attributable to owners of the company 
Non�controlling interest 

Total equity 

Liabilities 
Non�current liabilities 

Flnancia] liabilities 
i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease Liabilities 
iii) Other non current financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-current liabilities 

Total non-cunent liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 
ii) Lease Liabilities 
iii} Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues to others 

iv) Other current financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Total llabl!lties 
Total eauity and liabilities 

Note 

2A 
28 
3 

52 
4 
5 

6 
7 

37 
25 

8 

9 

10 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

56 

17 
3 
18 

19 
37 
20 

21 
3 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

March 31, 2022 

14,702 77 
3,098,03 
2,053 77 

2,173,95 
1,512,63 

100.95 

250.00 
477,86 

1,160.80 
509.97 
352.97 

26,393.70 

14,494.15 

13,085.06 
1,628.49 
1,455.42 

604.89 

2,972.98 

34,240.99 

60,634.69 

1,808.52 
18,066.96 
19,875.48 

1,265.94 

21,141.42 

7,172.82 
1,112,78 

439.79 

421.05 
426.14 

272.40 

9,844.98 

13,599.83 
222.96 

330.91 
10,920,99 

2,769.86 

438.62 
621.52 
743.60 

29,648.29 

39,493.27 

60,634.69 

Rs.in mffiion 
March 31, 2021 

14,872 70 
2,215.95 
2,242 85 
3,974.77 
3,031.88 

800 31 

0,03 
391-81 

1,482,92 
1,665 62 

220 63 

30,899.47 

15,144.35 

14,753.62 
4,687,46 

547,91 
131.11 

1,910.06 

37,174.51 

68,073.98 

1,808,52 
20,921.70 
22,730.22 

949,92 

23,680.14 

7,039.70 
1,168.05 

1,034,77 

337.67 
398.83 

333.05 

10,312.07 

16,061.89 
324.43 

9,721.94 
5,914.93 

424.80 
616.91 

1,016.87 

34,081.77 

44,393.84 

68,073.98 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For B 5 R& Co, lLP 

Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

Abhishek 
Partner 
Membership No. 062343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

Forand on behalf of the Board of Olre

1
ttors• 

Emcure PharmaceutTcals Limited 

CIN : U24231PN1981PLC024251 

"l/V"-- I\\�
8erjls De I iSatls Mehta 
Chairma 

\ 
\A• •El"£ Director 

DIN : 001 3675 '�II : 00118691 

B�f[ 
Company Secret.ary 

Membership No. F2922 

Place: Pune 
Date: M•v 04, 2022 

�� 
"Tajuddln Shaikh 
Chief Financial Officer 

May 12, 2022



EM CURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

Revenue: 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total income 

Expenses: 

Cost of materials consumed 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

Employee benefit expenses 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Finance cost 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional items 

Profit before tax 

TaK expenses 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Profit for the vur from continuirut operations 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

Profit /(Loss) from discontinued operations 

Tax expense/(credit) of discontinued operations 

Profit/ (Loss} �fter l�x of discontinued opera Hons 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

(a) In respect of continuing operations 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss 

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 
Tax on post-employment benefit obligations 

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Exchange differences in translating financials statement of foreign operations 

(b} In respect of discontinued operations 

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Exchange differences in translating financials statement of foreign operations 

Total cornprehensive income for the vear 

Note 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

33 

34 

32 

35 

36 

36 

60 

60 

49 
36 

16 

60 

Rs. in million 

Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

58,553.87 50,334.74 

634.73 338,76 

59,188.60 50,673.50 

12,961.01 11,895.98 

10,824.50 9,990,85 

(1,453.95) (3,035.27) 

10,118.20 9,028.06 

2,448.55 2,499.94 

1,759.78 1,549.41 

12,805,03 10,292.31 

49,463.12 42,221.28 

9,725.48 8.452.22 

. 45,25 

9,725.48 8,406.97 

2,860.53 2,620.02 

(160.61) (285.57) 

7,025.56 6,072.52 

(1,833.70) 

52.88 

(1,886.58) 

7,025.56 4,185.94 

(52.24) 18.00 

13.57 (6.23) 

(51.67) 104.86 

(116.79) 

(90.34} (0.16} 

6,935.22 4,185.78 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Profit attributable to: 

Owners of the company 

Non-controlling interests (refer note under statement of changes in equity) 

Other comprehensive income attributable to: 

Owners of the company 

Non-controlling interests 

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 

Owners of the company 

Non-controlling interests 

Total comprehensive income attributable to Owners of the company from: 

Continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Earnings per share (for continuing operations); 

Basic 

Diluted 

[Face value per share: Rs.10] 

Earnings /(Loss) per share {for discontinued operations): 

Basic 

Diluted 

[Face value per share: Rs.10] 

Earnings per share (for continuing and discontinued operations): 

Basic 

Diluted 

Face value per share: Rs.10 Previous year: Rs.10)] 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

ForB SR & Co. LLP 

Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 

Chartered Accountants 

Abhishek 

Partner 

Membership No. 062343 

Place: Pune 

Date: 

Note 

56 

56 

56 

60 

46 

46 

46 

46 

46 

46 

Year Ended 

March 31, 2022 

6,622 00 

403,56 

(84,70) 

(5.64) 

6,537.30 

397.92 

6,537.30 

36,62 

36,62 

36.62 

36,62 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

;;:U�?,1� 

BerjisO ill 

0,aiunan 

DIN : 00153675 

.$;£ 

Year Ended 

March 31, 2021 

3,921.47 

264.47 

(2.42) 

2,26 

3,919.05 

266.73 

5,922.42 

(2,003.37) 

32 11 

32.11 

(10.43) 

(10.43) 

21.68 

21.68 

Company Secretary 

Membership No. F2922 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Pune 

Date: May 04, 2022 May 12, 2022



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Equitv share capital Note 

As at April 1, 2020 
Changes in equity share capital 15 

As at March 31, 2021 

Eauity share aollal Note 

As at April 1, 2021 

Changes in equity share capital 15 

As at March 31, 2022 

Other equity Note 

As at April 1, 2020 

Total comprehensive Income for the year ended March 

31, 2021 
Profit for the year 
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit 16 
obligations (Net Of tax) 
Exchange differences in translating financials 16 
statement of foreign operations 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 
Final dividend on equity shares {Rs, 1.00 per share) 16 

Others 
Employee share based expense so 

Options settled in cash during the year 
Options forfeited 16 
Income tax on above 16 

As at March 31, 2021 

Others including adjustment on account of demerger 
Profit for the year 
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 16 
(Net of tax) 
Exchange differences in translating financials statement 16 
of foreign operations 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

Interim dividend on equity Shares 
Final dividend on equity Shares (Rs. 1.00 per share) 16 

Others 
Employee share based expense so 

Options forfeited 16 
Income tax on above 16 

As at March 31, 2022 

Note: 

R.t. In million 

1,808 52 

1,808S2 

Rs. in million 

1,808.52 

1,808.52 

Reserves and Surplus 

capital Securities Share General 

reserve premium options reserve 

outstanding 

account 

12.92 840.37 268.70 1,727.39 

. 

. . 

. 

. 

. 63.48 
(182.12) 

. . (32.84) 32.84 
(8,88) 

. (151.48) 23.96 

12.92 840.37 117.22 1,751.35 

(12.92) (840.37) (964.72) 
. . 

. 

. 

. 

57.16 

(15.18) 15.18 
. (3,82) 

41.98 11.36 

159.20 797.99 

1. The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials statements. 
2. For description of nature and purpose of Reserves refer note 16. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

. 

f1i 

�� 
Abhishek 

Partner 
Membership No. 06.i.343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

Rs in million 
Other Total Non Total 

Comprehensive controlling 
Income interest 

Retained Foreign currency 

earning translation 

reserve 

13,689.54 772.10 17,311.02 724.14 18,035.16 

3,921.47 3,921.47 264.47 4,185.94 
9.51 9.51 2.26 11,77 

(11.93) (11.93) (11.93) 

3,930.98 (11.93) 3,919.05 266.73 4,185.78 

(180,85) . {180.85) (40.95) (221.80) 
(180,85) (180.85) (40.95) (221.80) 

. 63.48 . 63.48 
(182.12) (182.12) 

. 
(8.88) (8,88) 

(127.52) (127.52) 

17,439.67 760.17 20,921.70 949.92 21,871.62 

(6,533.03) (551.79) (8,902.83) (8,902.83) 
6,622,00 6,622.00 403.56 7,025.56 

(33.03) (33,03) (5.64) (38.67) 

. (51.67) (51.67) . (51.67) 

6,588.97 (51.67) 6,537.30 397,92 6,935.22 

(361,70) (361.70) (61.43) (423.13) 
(180.85) 1180,85} (20.48) 1201.33) 
(542.55) (542.55) (81.90) (624.45) 

57.16 57.16 
. 

(3.82) (3.82) 
53.34 53.34 

16,953.06 156.71 18,066.96 1,265.94 19,332.90 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

"T/"1� Berjis Desai I-Chairman glng Dlri,ctor 

DIN : 00153675 00118691 

/4. ,�tµf 
� Company Secretary 

. 

Membership No. F2922 

Place: Pune 
Date: May 04, 2022 May 12, 2022



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Profit before tax from continuing operations 
Profit/(Loss) before tax from discontinued operations 

Adjustment for: 

Depreciation and amortisation' 
Impairment of intangible assets 
Unrealised exchange loss / (gain) ' 
Finance costs' 
Employee share-based payment expense 
Interest income from banks and others' 
Income arising from government grant (EPCG) 
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments 

Working capital adjustments: 

- Increase in inventories 
- Increase in trade receivables 
- Increase in other financial assets 
- (lncrease)/decrease in other assets 
- Increase in trade payables 
- Increase in other financial liabilities 
- lncrease/(decrease) in other liabilities 
- Increase in provisions 

Cash generated from operating activities 

Income tax paid (net of refunds) 

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and capital work-in-progress 
Acquisition of intangible assets and intangible assets under development 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Government grant (refer note 2A) 
Deferred consideration paid on acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (refer note 62) 
Investment in LLP 
Interest received from banks and others' 
Deposits (placed)/ matured (net) 

Net cash generated from/ (used) in investing activities {B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayment of long-term borrowings (refer note 1 below) 

Proceeds from long term borrowings 
Proceeds from / (Repayment) short-term borrowing (net) 
Interest paid (refer note 2 below) 
Repayment of lease liabilities 
Government grant (refer note 61D) 
Payment on account of settlement of Employee stock options (refer note 64) 
Dividend paid by holding company 

Dividend paid to non controlling interest 
Net cash generated from/ (used) in financing activities (C) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalent as at 1 April (refer below) 
Less: Transferred pursuant to composite scheme of arrangement (Refer Note 60) 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent as at March 31 

Breakup of cash and cash equivalent as at March 31 

Cash on hand 
Balances with bank in current accounts 
Balances with bank in cash credit accounts 
l.iemand deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 
• I . 

Bank overdrafts used for cash management purpose 

Tota! cash and cash equivalent• 

. .

i 

Rs. in million 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

9,725.48 8,406.97 
. (1,833.70) 

2,448.55 3,233.10 
436.95 

{155.15) 190.23 
1,759.78 1,981.32 

57.16 63.48 
(101.97) (73.53) 

(25.03) (6.37) 
4.08 (4.23) 

13,712.90 12,394.22 

(3,071.63) (3,412.80) 
(1,728.71) (3,301.48) 

(156.54) (127.28) 
(1,077.09) 164.46 
3,157.03 2,315,31 

122.01 185.23 

(302.85) 790.74 
138.72 40.28 

(2,919.06) (3,345.54) 

10,793.84 9,048.68 

(3,111.77) (2,004.33) 

7,682.07 7,044.35 

(3,782.04) (1,254.05) 
(187.87) (202.65) 

31.21 125.14 
50.00 . 

(2,750.78) (1,115.51) 
(250.00) 

59.49 75.81 
(1,057.92) (147.22) 

(7,887.91) (2,518.48) 

(4,467.02) (4,110.75) 
3,714.18 5,774.88 
1,759.03 (981.67) 

(1,553.23) (1,844.83) 
(347.01) (436.80) 

. 114.05 

. (182.12) 
(542.56) (180.85) 

(81.90) (40.95) 

(1,518.51) (1,889.04) 

(1,724.35) 2,636.83 
(3,500.42) (6,091.08) 

2,141.19 -

1.86 (46.17) 

(3,081.72) (3,500.42) 

1.20 3.90 
1,585.28 4,593.78 

41.32 83.03 
0.69 6.75 

(4,710.21) (8;187.88) 

(3,081.72) (3,500.42) 

• Cash and cash equivalent.I eludes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management. 
' represents arp nt in' respect o�ntlnulng and discontinued operations for year ended March 31, 2021. 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

Borrowings: 

Opening balance 
Amount borrowed during the year 
Amount repaid during the year 
Others (includes unrealised foreign exchange differences, foreign exchange differences on translation of 
subsidiaries, etc.) 
Closing balance (refer note 17 & 21) 

Interest accrued on borrowings: 

Opening balance 
Transferred pursuant to composite scheme of arrangement (Refer Note 60) 
Finance cost incurred during the year' 
Amount paid during the year 
Finance cost on account of unwinding of discount on note payable and preference shares 
Interest accrued on lease liability 
Others (includes borrowing cost capitalised during the year, foreign exchange differences, transaction cost, 
etc.) 
Closing balance (refer note 23) 
' represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations for year ended March 31, 2021. 

Footnotes to the cash flow statement: 

Rs. in million 

Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

15,140.81 14,443.02 
5,473.21 5,774.88 

(4,467.02) (5,092.42) 

164.69 15.33 

16,311.69 15,140.81 

105.28 113.37 
(15.84) 

1,759.78 1,981.32 
(1,553.23) (1,844.83) 

(158.59) 
(123.96) (119.27) 

(106.89) 133.28 

65.14 105.28 

1. This includes prepayment of term loan amounting to Rs.160.90 million (March 31, 2021: Rs. 1,711.23 million) and swap of loan with other banks amounting to Rs. 
695.04 million (March 31, 2021- Nil) 

2. Includes interest expense of Rs. 91.93 million (March 31, 2021 Rs. 124.91 million) which have been capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs. 

3. Consolidated Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" 

4. For non- cash transaction pursuant to Composite to the Composite scheme, refer note 60. 

5. Refer note 3 for movement in lease liabilities. 

6. Refer note 58 for corporate social responsibility expenditure paid- in cash during the year. 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 
Chartered Accountants 

Abhishek 

Partner 
Membership No. 062343 

Place: Pune 
Date: 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 

CIN : U24231PN1981PLC024251 

f � .. :,.,.;" 1� Chairman 
• DIN : 00153675 

. ':&.t: 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. F2922 

Place: Pune 
Date: May 04, 2022 

�----
l'�lng Director 

DIN : 00118691 

May 12, 2022
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lA. General information: 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, the parent company ("the Holding company") is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The Holding company has its 
registered office in Pune and is engaged in developing, manufacturing and marketing a broad range of pharmaceutical products globally. The Holding company's core strength 
lies in developing and manufacturing differentiated pharmaceutical products in-house, which are commercialised through its marketing infrastructure across geographies and 
business relationships with multi-national pharmaceutical companies. 

The Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Composite Scheme") for demerger of the Holding Company's United States of America ('US') market business into Avet Lifesciences 
Limited, the Resulting entity, was approved by Honourable National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Mumbai Bench vide its order dated June 04, 2021, formal order received 
on July 15, 2021. The said NCLT order was filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Holding Company and Avet Lifesciences Limited on July 2s; 2021, thereby making the 
Composite Scheme effective. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of the US market business stand transferred and vested into Avet Lifesciences Limited on April 01, 2021, being 
the Appointed date as per the Composite Scheme for the demerger of US market business. Both the entities are controlled by same promoters. 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and the following subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries (together referred to 
as "Group"). 

Name of subsidiaries 

Direct subsidiaries 

Gennova Biapharmaceuticals Limited 

Zuventus Healthcare limited 

Emcure Nigeria limited 

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ LLC. 
Emcure Pharmaceuticals South Africa (Pty) Limited 
Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda 

Heritage Pharma Holdings Inc. (doing business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Holdings Inc.) 161 

Emcure Pharma UK Ltd 
Emrure Pharma P"ru S.A.C:. 
Emcure Pharma Mexico S.A. DE C.V. 
Emcurc Ph.irm.iceuticals Pty Ltd 
Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

Avet Lifesciences Private limited (Formerly known as Avet lifesciences limited) 1'1 and 161 

FmN"A Pharma ChllP SoA 121 

La,ar Pharm�rPuticals Limited 131 

tmcure Pharm:o Phllinnines fnr C•I 

5,.,n down <ub•ldlariP< l5I 

Heritage Pharma Labs lnc.(dolng business as Avet Pharmaceuticals Labs Inc) 161 

Heritage Pharmaceuticals lnc.(doine business as Avet Pharmaceuticals lnc.l 101 

Tillomed Laboratories Ltd 
Tilfomed Pharma GmbH 
Laboratories Tillomed Spain S.l.U. 
Tillomed Italia S.R.L 

l'mrurP NZ I lmi•·a-' l7J 
Ti II om ed F ranee SAS 
.,,,,n Pharma Inc. "1 

Tillomed Laboratories BV 

TillomPri d.o n 181 

Notes: 

Percentage of 

Holding(%) 

87.95% 
79.58% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

1. Avet lifesciences Private Ltd.(formerly known as Avet Lifesciences limited) was incorporated on August 26,2020. 
2. Em cure Pharma Chile SpA was incorporated on October 2, 2020. 
3. Lazor Pharmaceuticals Limited was incorporated on February 4, 2021. 
4. Emcure Pharma Philippines Inc was incorporated on May 07, 2021 
5. Effective holding % of the Company through its subsidiaries. 
6. Direct subsidiaries/ Step down subsidiaries till March 31, 2021 (refer note 60) 
7. Emcure NZ limited dissolved on October 13, 2021. 
8. Tillomed d.o.o., A direct subsidiary of Em cure Pharma UK Ltd was incorporated on August 26, 2021.
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Country of incorporation 

India 
India 

Nigeria 

UAE 
South Africa 

Sra2fl 

USA 

United Kingdom 
P<c>ru 

Mexico 

Au�trnlio 
Canada 
India 

Chile 
Kenya 

Philippines 

USA 

USA 
United �lngdom 

Germany 
Spain 
Italy 

New Zealand 
France 
USA 

Netherlands 
Croatia 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lB. Basis of preparation 

a) Basis of preparation 

i. Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time. 

"The group has considered the amendments to Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") via notification dated March 24, 2021 
in the financial statements disclosures, wherever applicable." 

Details of the Group's accounting policies are included in Note lC. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

b) Functional and presentation currency 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Holding company's functional currency. All the amounts disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million, unless otherwise indicated. 

c) Basis of Measurement 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the following items: 

Items Measurement Basis 

Liabilities for stock appreciation rights Fair value 
Equity settled shared based payment options Fair value 
Investments in LLP Fair value 
Contingent consideration in business combination Fair value 
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations 

d) Use of estimates and judgements 

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimations uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2022 is included in 
following notes: 

Note lC. a) Valuation of assets acquired as a part of contingent consideration; 
Note lC. d) Useful lives of property, plant, equipment and intangibles assets; 
Note lC. e) Useful lives of intangible assets; 

Note lC (i) - Sales return, rebates and chargebacks; 

Note 3 - Measurement of discount rate for initial recognition of ROU and Lease Liability as per IND AS 116 
Note 9. Valuation of inventories 
Note 24(i) - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies : key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources; 
Note 37 - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax credit can be used; 

Note 49 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions. 
Note 52- Impairment assessment for goodwill 

e) Measurement affair values 

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 
The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all 
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Head of Treasury . 

The team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure 
fair values, then the team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the 
level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a 
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

Furth_er.!nfor�ation about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following_!i�!es: 

- Note 41-fair value measurement; 
- Note SO - 2mpl0yee stock options plan. 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lB. Basis of preparation (Continued) 
f) Current versus non current classification: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies 
Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and liabilities, 
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal operating cycle; 
- it is held for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets/ non-current financial assets, All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Liabilities 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
- it is expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- the Group does not have any unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 
Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current liabilities/ non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Operating cycle 

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalent. The operating cycle of the Group is less than 12 
months. 

lC. Significant accounting policies 

a) Basis of consolidation 
The Group consolidates all entities which it controls. Control is established when the Group has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has ability to affect the entity's returns by using its power over the entity, 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences and until the date control ceases. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income 
of subs,diaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. The 
consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. 

i) Business combinations 

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Transaction costs incurred in connection with business combination are expensed out in 
statement of profit and loss. The identifiable assets and liabilities that meet the condition for recognition is recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

In case of bargain purchase where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, the excess is recognised in other comprehensive income on 
the acquisition date and accumulate the same in equity as capital reserve after reassessing the fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts 
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or 
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the 
amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition 
date. 
The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net 
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition by-acquisition basis. 

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the common control are accounted for using the pooling of interests method. The assets and 
liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts and no adjustments are made to reflect their fair values or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The 
difference between any consideration given and the aggregate historical carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded in capital reserve and 
presented separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose. 
If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss 
is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate. 
ii. Goodwill 
Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid to acquire a business over underlying fair value of the identified assets acquired. Goodwill is carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that 
the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carryin·g amount. 
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination. Where goodwill has been allocated to c cash-i;enerating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed 
operation is included in the carrying amount of the operat:iln when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumS<anc:es i,-;"neasured based on 
the relative values of the disposed operation and.the.portion o_f the cash-generating unit retained. 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

'a) Basis of consolidation (continued) 

Ui. Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 

has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity, The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the 

date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. 

iv. Non-controlling interests (NCI} 

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of 

subsequent changes in equity of subsidiaries. 

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. 

Changes in the Group's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. 

v. Loss of control 

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest 

retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost, Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss / reserves as applicable. 

vi. Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 

same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

b) Foreign Currency Transaction, translation and foreign operation 

Transaction in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the respective components at the exchange rates at the dates of transactions or an 

average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets 

and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into functional currency at exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Exchange 

difference are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except exchange differences arising from the translation of the following items which are recognised in CCI/property, 

plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

i. Translation of long term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to period prior to transition to Ind AS and are related to purchase of property, plant and equipment anc 

intangible assets (refer note 2A,2B, 4 & 5). 

ii. Foreign operations 

Assets and liabilities of entities with functional currency other than presentation currency have been translated to the presentation currency using exchange rates prevailing on 

the balance sheet date. Statement of profit and loss has been translated using average exchange rates. Translation adjustments have been reported as foreign currency 

translation reserve in the other comprehensive income. 

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences 

related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal or in case of a common control demerger, it is netted off 

against the loss of control number that would be accounted for in the reserves and surplus. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then 

the relevant portion of the cumulative amount is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a part of its interest in a joint venture while retaining significant 

influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. 

c) Financial instruments 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset (except trade receivables which is measured at transaction price) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value 

through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 
- amortised cost; or 

- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI 

(designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a 

financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that 

wciold Clti•ierwise arise. 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

c) Financial instruments (continued) 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is 

managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes: 

- The stated policy and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. 

These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the 

financial asset to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of asset; 

- How the performance of portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management; 
- The risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed; 

- How managers of business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's 

continuing recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purpose of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for time value of money 

and for credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and other basic leading risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and 

administrative costs), as well as profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing 

whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making 

this assessment, the Group considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows; 

- term that would adjust the contractual rate, including variable interest rate features; 

- prepayment and extension features; and 

- term that limits the Group's claim to cash flows for specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amount of principal 

and interest on principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of contract. Additionally, for a financial asset 

acquired on a significant premium or discount to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or require prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the 

contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as 

consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is significant at initial recognition. 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 

including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 

income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit 

or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it 

is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in 

profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and 

losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. 

iii. Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash 

flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains 

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 

transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 

The Group also derecognises a financial liability whe�.its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantia!1_y-diffe,;o.L In this case, a new 

financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial !\ability extinguished and the new 

financial liability with modified terms is recognised in'profit or loss. 

iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right 

to set off the amounts and it l(ltend.s-elther to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to the financial statements (continued} 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 
d) Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and 

rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimate costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring 

the site on which it is located 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separated items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment, 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss, 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to Group. 

iii. Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method, 

and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 

except for vehicles and furnitures and fixtures at leasehold premises. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative 

periods are as follows: 

Asset Management estimate of Useful rrfe as per 

useful life schedule.II 

Leasehold improvements As per lease term NA 

Building 30 years 30 years 

Plant and machinery 15 years 15 years 

Electrical installation 10 years 10 years 

Air handling equipment 15 years 15 years 

Computers 3-6 years 3-6 years 

Office equipment 5 years 5 years 

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years 

Vehicles 5 years 8-10 years 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent 

advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i,e, from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of). 

e} Intangible assets 

- Intangible assets 

i. Initial recognition: 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost of acquisition. Intangible assets acquired under business combination are measured at fair value as of the date of 

business combination. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to Group. 

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective estimated useful life using straight-line method. The estimated useful life of amortizable intangibles is reviewed at the end 

of each reporting period and change in estimates if any are accounted for on a prospective basis. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Intangible Asset Management estimared useful life 

Product Development, Abbreviated New Drug Applications 5 to 10 years 

(ANDAs) 

Customer relationshios 5 vears 
Brands acquired 5 to 10 years 

Software, License rights 2 to 10 years 

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate. 
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lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Intangible assets (continued) 

- Intangible Assets under Development 

Intangible assets under development are initially recognized at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefit 

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group, 

The Group irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, test an intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying 

amount with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated 

future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 

the asset. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the intangible asset not yet available for use exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses 

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

f) Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on weighted average formula, and includes expenditure incurred in

acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. In case of manufactured inventory 

and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity, 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expense. 

The net realisable value of work-in- progress is determined with reference to the selling price of related finished products. 

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material price have 

declined and it is estimated that the cost of finished products will exceed their net realizable value. 

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 

The Group considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventory, product discontinuation, price changes and any other factor which impact the Group's business in 

determining the allowance for obsolete, non-saleable and slow moving inventories. The Group considers the above factors and adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its 

actual experience on a periodic basis. 

g) Impairment 

i. Impairment of financial instruments 

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more 

events that have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows of financial assets have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observed data: 

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 

- a breach of contract such as a default or being overdue for a period of more than 12 months from the credit term offered to the customer; 

- the restructuring of loan or advance by the Company on the terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; 

- it is probable that borrower will enter bankruptcy or the financial reorganization; 

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Group follows 'simplified 

approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk, 

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Group recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the 

reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used, 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

When determining whether the credit risk of financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers 

reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost of effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis 

based on Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward - looking information. 

The Group considers financial asset to be in default when: 

a. The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such as realising security (if any is held); or
b. The financial asset is 360 days or more past due. 

Measurement of expected credit loss 

Expected credit loss are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (Le. the difference between the 

cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Group expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance of expected credit losses in the balance sheet 

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. 

Write-off 

The Gross carrying amount of financial asset is written off (either partially of full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when 

Group determines that the debtor does not have asset or source of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount subject to write-off. However, 

financial assets that are written-off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
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lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
g) Impairment (continued) 

ii. Impairment a/ non-financial asset 

The Group's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment If anv such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CG Us). Each CGU represents the smallest group 
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CG Us, 
The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated future 
cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU 
(or the asset). 
The Group's corporate assets (e.g. central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of 
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CG Us) on a pro rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any 
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

Goodwill 
CG Us to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount of a CGU 
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the 
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. 
Determination of recoverable amount of CGU requires the management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate 
the present value. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. 

h) Employee benefits 

i. Short term employee benefits 

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of 
obligation can be estimated reliably. 

ii. Share-based payment transactions 

Share-based payment are provided to employees via the Group's Employees Stock Option Plan ("Emcure ESOS 2013"). 
The Group accounts for the share based payment transactions as equity settled. 

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the Group is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding 
increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the 
number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based 
on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. 

The Group also grants the options to the employees of its subsidiaries for which subsidiary does not have an obligation to settle the share based payment transaction. Total 
expense for such options issued to employees of subsidiary is recognised as an expense and corresponding increase in share options outstanding account. 

If options granted cancelled or settled during the vesting period/ after vesting period (other than a grant cancelled by forfeiture when the vesting conditions are not satisfied) 
then group immediately recognises the remaining amount of goods & services that have not been recorded in Profit & loss statement so far through accelerated vesting and 
then any payment made to the employee on the cancellation or settlement of the grant shall be accounted for as the repurchase of an equity interest, i.e. as a deduction from 
equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the repurchase date. Any such excess shall be recognised 
as an expense. 

iii. Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by 
employees. 
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

iv. Defined benefit plan 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated 
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the 
fair value of any plan assets. 
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results is a potential 
asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefit available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future 

.. q•□tributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of econ,imi�.henefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements. 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if 
any,' excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying 
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to 
defined benefit plans are recogni_sed in profit.or loss. 

When the benefits of the plan are changed or .when plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past se 
gain or loss on curtailment 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gain and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan 
occurs. 
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lC. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
h) Employee benefits (continued) 

v. Stock Appreciation Rights (SA R's) 

Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR's) are provided to certain senior executives level employees of the Group. Payout related to these SAR's is dependent on the achievement of the 
defined EBITDA level by the wholly own subsidiary of the Parent. As the final payout is not based on the subsidiary's share price these SAR's are not within the scope of Ind AS 
102 and hence the payment is an employee benefit expense which is accounted for under Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' The benefits are discounted using the market yields at 
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation, 

vi. Other Jong term employee benefit 

The Group's liability in respect of other long-term employee benefits (compensated absences) is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 
service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is 
measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period in which they arise. 

i) Provisions (other than for employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax-rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for. 

ii. Onerous contracts 

A contract is considered onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from the contract are lower the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation 
under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at present value of lower of expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of 
continuing with the contract. Before such provision is made, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with the contract. 

iii. Contingencies 

Provision in respect of contingencies relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines, penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and 
the amount can be estimated reliably. 

iv. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a 
present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources 
is remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. However, contingent assets are 
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change 
occurs. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

j) Revenue (Refer note 53) 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Consideration is allocated to each performance obligation specified in the contract. 
The Group recognises revenue pertaining to each performance obligation when it transfers control over a product to a customer, which is adjusted for expected refunds, which 
are estimated based on the historical data, adjusted as necessary. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effect of time value of money if the contract includes significant 
financing component. 

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Where the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to 
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is highly probable 
that a significant reversal will not occur. 

The Group recognises refund liability where the Group receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some or all of that consideration to the customer. The 
refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received (or receivable) for which the entity does not expect to be entitled (i.e. amounts not included in the 
transaction price). The right to recover returned goods asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory less any expected costs to recover goods. The 
provision on account of the expected amount of returns is included in provisions and the right to recover returned goods is included in inventory. 

Rendering of services (other than sale of know-how, rights and licenses) 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in statement of profit and loss by reference to percentage completion method. The Company is involved in rendering services 
related to its products to its customers. If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting periods, then the consideration is allocated on a relative 
fair value basis between the different services. 

Rendering of services - sale af know-how, rights and licenses 

Income from sale of technology/ know-how, rights and licenses is recognised in accordance with the terms of the contract with customers when the related performance 
obligation is completed, or when control is transferred, as applicable. 

Sales returns and breakage expiry 

When a customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the Group has recognised a allowance for returns. The allowance is measured equal to the value of 
the sales expected to return in the futu; c pe, ;c,d. Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns and cost of sales are adju,ted fo; the value of the corresponding 
goods to be returned. 

The Group has an obligation to replace the EOods which will expire. The Group has recognised an allowance for the returns due to expiry. The ,.!lowance is measured on the 
basis of historical trend of expiry against the sales occurred in the current and earlier period. Management considers the sales value for the periods which are equivalent to 
average general shelf life of ����u��- _Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns. 
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k) Government grants 

The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be 
received, Government grants received in relation to assets are presented as a reduction to the carrying amount of the related asset. Grants related to income are deducted in 
reporting the related expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

Export entitlements from government authorities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is 
established in respect of the exports made by the Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds. 

I) Leases 

The Group as a lessee 

The group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. The group uses judgement in assessing the lease term (including 
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by 
an option to extend the lease if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably 
certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a 
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the group to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option 
to terminate the lease. The group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental 
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. 

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing 
rate in the country of domicile of the leases .The lease payments shall include fixed payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Group 
is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the 
lease. 

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 

The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset 
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. 

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the 
lease liability. The right-o f -use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use 
asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for 
impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the 
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

m) Recognition of interest income or expenses 

Interest income is recognised using effective interest method. 

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of financial instrument to: 
- The gross carrying amount of the financial assets; or 
- The amortised cost of the financial liability. 
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the 
amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis. 
n) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in 
other comprehensive income. 
i. Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss of the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to 
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax 
assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and 
settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 
ii. Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding 
,., • amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carri�.d for,wArd tax losses and tax credits. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxs:ile pre',; will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax 
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case ot a history of recent !asses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the 
'extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other' evi�eric� that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax 
asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no 
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are e><pect d to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 



















































































































EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 57: Expenditure on research and development during the year 

The total expenditure incurred on Research and Development including in house Research and Development during the year is as follows; 

Particular< March 31, 2022 

Revenue 11 

Capital• 

Total 

R&D expenditure as a% of revenue from operations,.. 

" represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations for year ended March 31, 2021. 

Note 58: Corporate social responsibility 

3,068.37 

336.12 

3,404.49 

5.81% 

Rs. in million 
March, 31 2021 

2,189 16 

84.47 

2,273.63 

3.75% 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the holding company and its 
Indian subsidiaries, The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, healthcare and ensuring environmental sustainability. Amount spent 
during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule Vll of the Companies Act 2013 are as mentioned below: 

Rs. in million 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(a) amount required to be spent by the company for the full year 107.14 80.20 

(b) amount of expenditure incurred till date, -

Paid 

Construction/acquisition of any asset . 

On purposes other than (i) above 107.47 80.91 

Yet to be paid 

Construction/acquisition of any asset -

On purposes other than (i) above 1.63 3.99 

Total (b) 109.10 84.90 

(c) shortfall at the end of the year 

(d) total of previous years shortfall (Cummulative) 0.84 10.24 

(e) reason for shortfall Non-identification of Non-identification of 

feasible CSR initiatives. feasible CSR initiatives. 

(f) nature of CSR activities Promoting Healthcare, Promoting Healthcare, 
Education, Rural Education & Rural 

development projects, development projects 
Environment Sustainability 

& Training to promote 
rural and/or nationally 

recognised sports 

(h) Movement in provision with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual 
obligation 

Opening provision 3.99 -

Add: Provision during the year 1.63 3.99 

Less: Utilisation during the year (3.99) 

Closing provision 1.63 3.99 

Note 59 : The information regarding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information available with the Company. 

Particula� 

i) The principal amount and the interest due th�reon. remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting 
year 

a, Principal outstanding and not overdue as per MSME act 

b. Principal outstanding and overdue as per MSME act and interest due thereon 

U) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
e-ac.h accounting year 

ffi) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding the interest 
specifitd under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

v) The amount of intere�iclccn.J·ed and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
Interest dues above are actu'ally 'paid to'the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Oeveiopment Act, 2006 

Rs. in million 

March 31, 2022 Man:h 31, 2021 

330.84 17.21 

41.14 

0.07 0.15 
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Note 60: Composite Scheme of Arrangement 

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, in its meeting held on November 09, 2020, had approved Composite Scheme of 

Arrangement between Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited (NOemerged Company") and Avet lifesciences limited ("Resulting Company"} and their 

respective shareholders ('Scheme') which was filed before the National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Mumbai, on November 30, 2020, for 

demerger of the Company's United States of America ('US') market business and vesting the same into the Resulting Company, under Sections 

230 to 232 read with Section 52, section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Composite Scheme of 

arrangement has been approved by NCLT on June 4, 2021 and a certified copy of the same has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of 

Companies, Maharashtra, on July 25, 2021 with an appointed date of April 01, 2021. 

Accounting of Demerger as per approved Composite Scheme: 

(i) the Demerged Company reduced the book values of assets, liabilities and reserves of the US market business as at the close of business on the day 

immediately preceding the Demerger Appointed Date in its books of accounts. Reserves such as Capital reserve, Securities premium, General Reserve 

and Retained earnings are reduced in the proportions of net assets transferred to the Resulting Company; 

(ii) the carrying value of the investment in equity shares and loans of the Resulting Entity to the extent held by the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 

1.40 million were cancelled; and 

{iii) the Demerged Company made an adjustment equal to the difference between net assets transferred and reserves, first in the Capital Reserve to 

the extent available, thereafter in the Securities Premium to the extent available and residual balance in the General Reserve under the head "Other 

Equity". 

The book value of assets, liabilities and reserves transferred from consolidated financials are as under: 

Partlrulars Rs. In million 

Property, plant and equipment 1,306.01 

Capital work-in-progress 98.72 

Right-of-use assets 394.36 

Goodwill 2,029.96 

Other Intangible assets 1,201.09 

Intangible assets under development 700.45 

Financial assets 

i) Other non-current financial assets 68.97 

Deferred tax assets (net) 162.29 

Income tax assets (net) 1,382.59 

Other non-current assets 

Total non- current assets (A) 7,344.44 

Current assets 

Inventories 3,721.83 

Financial assets 

i) Trade receivables 3,397.28 

Ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2,385.22 

iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 

iv) Other current financial assets (280.56) 

Other current assets 82.00 

Total current assets (B) 9,305.77 

Total Assets (C) 16,650.21 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 

ii) Lease Liabilities 319.50 

iii) Other non-current financial liabilities 584.84 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (10.65) 

Total non-current liabilities (D) 893.69 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 4,526.42 

ii) Lease Liabilities 108.79 

iii) Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro and smali enterprises -

Total outstanding dues to others 1,627.07 

iv) Other current financial liabilities 176.13 

Provisions 611.12 

Other current liabilities 6.26 

Total current liabilities (El 7,055.79 

To1.,1 Liabilities (fl 7,949.48 

Total Equity (C-F) 8,700.73 



EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 60 : Composite Scheme of Arrangement(Contlnued) 

The Group has presented the Unites States of America ('US') Business as discontinued operations during the year ended on 31 March 2021 in 

accordance with Ind AS 105 and accordingly reclassified the comparative financial information of the previous year presented as below: 

(a): Results of discontinued operations 

Parttculars 

Revenue: 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 
To1al Income 

Expen�es: 
Cost of materials consumed 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 
Employee benefit expenses 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Finance cost 

Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 
Exceptional items 

Profit/(loss) before tax 

Tax (Benefit)/ Expenses 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified ta profit or loss 

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 

Tax on post-employment benefit obligations 

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Exchange differences in translating financials statement of foreign operations 

Income tax relating to these items 

To1aI 

Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Profit attributable to: 
Owners of the company 

Non-controlling interests (refer note under statement of changes in equity) 

Other comprehensive income attributable to: 
Owners of the company 

Non-controlling interests 

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 
Owners of the company 
Non-controlling interests 

Earnings per share: 
Basic 

Diluted 
[Face value per share: Rs.10 (Previous year: Rs.10)] 

(b) The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operations are as follows: 

Particulars 
Operating activities 

Investing activities 

Financing activities 

Net cash (inflow)/ outflow 

(c) Appointed date and effective date accounting 

Vear ended 

March 31, 2022 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

-
. 

. 

. 

31-Mar-22 

Rs. in million 

Vear ended 

March 31, 2021 

10,229.41 
15.15 

10,244.56 

2,470.33 
3,385.03 

509.01 
1,993.19 

733.16 
431.91 

1,714.94 
11,237.57 

(993.01) 
840.69 

(1,833.70) 

(611.10) 
663.98 

(1,886.58) 

-

. 

(116.79) 
. 

(116.79) 

(2,003.37) 

(1,886.58) 

(116.79) 
. 

(2,003.37) 

(10.43) 
(10.43) 

Rs. in million 
31-Mar-21 

220.42 
(115.18) 

3,116.72 

Had_,t11J• not been an NCLT approved Scheme, the effect of scheme would have been given on July 25, 2021 instead of April 01, 2021 and the total 
r, 

1 
re,v,e�ue for the year ended March 31, 2021 would have been higher by Rs. 3,482.22 million and the total expenses would have been higher by Rs . 

•. 
� 

:�,.;·JiS�·t,Mil\lon. 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 61 : Government Grant 

A) Government grants are related to exemption of basic customs duty on purchase of imported machineries to be used for the 
manufacturing of products. Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited, a subsidiary of the company is required to fulfil the export obligation 
against duty benefit received. Refer Note 45B for the details of unfulfilled obligations Based on past experience, the management is 
confident that it will fulfil conditions attached to the grant received. During the year Gennova Biopharmaceuitcals Limited has fulfiled the 
export obligation and recognised income Rs. 25.03 million (March 31, 2021 Rs, 6.37 million). 

Rs in million 

EPCGGrants March 31 2022 March 31 2021 

Balance at beginning of the year - deferred grant 11.45 6.37 
Duty saved during the year 57.55 11.44 
Released to the statement of profit and loss (25.03) (6.37) 
B•IMrP at end of thP "6•r 43_q7 11.45 
Current -

I Mnn-riirrPnt 4,_g7 11 ,< 

8) Gennova Biopharmaceuitcals Limited has received a sanction for various Government grants towards research and development 
expenses for life saving drugs and vaccines. During the year ended March 31, 2022 grant amounting to Rs. 773.10 million (March 31, 
2021 : Rs. 193.25 million) has been recognised as 'Other Operating Revenue' in statement of profit or loss for the eligible expenses 
incurred towards respective projects, out of which Rs. 80.92 million (March 31, 2021: Rs. 114.25 million) has been accrued as 
Government Grant receivable under 'other current financial assets'. 

Rs. in million 
Government 2rants re"ce.lvable March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Balance at beginning of the year 114.25 -

Received during the year (114.25) -

Recognised in statement of profit or loss 80.92 114.25 
Balance at end of the year 80.92 114.25 

Current 80.92 114.25 
Non-current - -

C) Gen nova Bio pharmaceuticals Limited has also received grants amounting to Rs. 117.82 million (March 31, 2021 :Rs. 245.76 million) for 
which eligible expenses will be incurred in the next year, accordingly it has been disclosed the same as Deferred Revenue grants under 
other current liabilities. 

Rs. in million 
Deferred revenue grants March .31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Balance at beginning of the year 245.76 -

Received during the year 564.31 324.76 
Recognised in the statement of profit and loss (692.25) (79.00) 
Balance at end of the year 117.82 245.76 

Current 117.82 245.76 
Non-current - . 

D) Gen nova Biopharmaceuticals Limited has also received government grants amounting to Rs. 114.04 million (March 31, 2021: Rs. 
114.05 million) disclosed under other non-current liabilities related to the amount receiv_ed to incur capital expenditure for building 
manufacturing facility. The company will offset these grants at the time of incurring capital expenditures for the eligible manufacturing 
facility. 

Rs. in million 
De.lerred capital granl-Gej1nOllll BiopharmaceuUcals Umlted March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Balance at beginning of the year 114.04 -

Received during the year - 114.04 
Eligible capital expenditure incurred during the year -

Balance at end of the year 114.04 114.04 

Current - -

Non-current 114.04 114.04 

Note 62 : Consideration on acquisition of subsidiary 

The Group acquired 100% equity shares in Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc., International Pharmaceuticals Generics Ltd. and IPG (2015) vide 
Asset and Share Purchase Agreement (the "agreement") dated November 8, 2015 (the "acquisition Date") through a special purpose 
vehicle viz. Emcure Pharmaceuticals Canada Limited. 

Immediately following this agreement, on November 9, 2015, all entities above were amalgamated and new entity called Marean 
Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("Marean") was fc:,rme.�c the current operating company.The acquisition was for a total consideration of Rs. 4,619_.12 
million• (CAD 93 million*). As per th� Share Purchase Agreement, there is consideration payable to the selling shareholders of M?•on 
Pharmaceuticals Inc. in the form of preferen.:e shares, based on achievement of specific EBITDA levels of Marean for the year. ended 
March 31, 2021, or at the option of selling shar�holders for the year ended March 31, 2022, limited to a maximum of Rs. 2,384.06 million 
(CAD 48 Million). 

In December 2020, the holders notified their intent not to exercise their option to extend the redemption term by a year and redeem the 
preferred shares. The shares were redeemed on August 11, 2021 at the current value of Rs. 2,750.78 (CAD 47.25 Million) (Refer note 23) 

- ''°,Consiqering 1 CAD; 49.67 Rupees, the rate as on the date of acquisition 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 63 - Business Combination 

In July 2021, Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited ("Holding Company") incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary named as Emcure Canada 

Inc. On August 11, 2021, Emcure Canada Inc., a company under common control with Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc., acquired all of the 

issued and outstanding shares of Arsh Holdings Inc. and Rs313 Holdings ltd, for consideration of CAD 47.25 million. Arsh Holdings Inc. 

and Rs313 Holdings Ltd. held all of the outstanding preference shares mentioned in note no. 62 above. 

Emcure Canada Inc. financed the acquisition with CAD 17.00 million in form of unsecured loan provided by the Holding Company, and a 

secured term loan from bank of USO 25-475 million (equivalent to CAD 31.89 million). 

Subsequently, Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc., Emcure Canada Inc., Arsh Holdings Inc,, and Rs313 Holdings Ltd., were amalgamated on 

August 13, 2021 and the name of the amalgamated company was Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

No gains or losses were recognized in the consolidated financials as a result of the amalgamation transaction. 

As a result of the amalgamation, assets of CAD 49.06 million, liabilities of CAD 48,91 million,deficit of CAD 0.04 million and equity share 

capital of CAD 0.1 million were amalgamated in the books of Marean Pharmaceuticals Inc, 

Note 64. Material regrouping: 

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the payment on account of settlement of Employee stock options amounting to Rs. 182.12 

Million has been inadvertently classified as cash flows from operating activities instead of cash flows from financing activities in the Cash 

Flow Statement. This inadvertent classification has been restated in the Cash Flow Statement presented in the Consolidated Financial 

Information for the year ended 31 March 2022. The following table summarises the impact on the Cash Flow Statement: 

Rs in million 
For the year 

For the year ended 
ended March 

31, 2021 (As per 
March 31, 2021 

Particulars Adjustment (as per consolidated 
audited 

financials for March 31, 
financials of 

March 2021) 
2022) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 6,862.23 182.12 7,044.35 

Net cash used in financing activities (1,706.92) (182.12) (1,889.04) 

•, 

• _j_ 

-�1 �7 
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EMCURE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note 65 : Impact of COVID-19 pandemic 

In March 2020, the Wo:l:1 Health Organisation declared COVJD-19 to be a pandemic. The group has adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the 
health of its employee.s and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption, The group has considered internal and external information while finalizing various 
estima'..es in relation LC! its financial statement captions upto the date of approval of the Statements by the Board of Directors. The actual impact of the global health 
pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated, as the COVID -19 situation evolves in India and globally. The group will continue to closely monitor any 
material changes to future economic conditions, 

Note 66: Code of Social Security 

The Indian Parliament has �pproved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Indian companies in the group towards Provident Fund 
and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions 
from stake holders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Holding Company and its Indian subsidiaries will assess the impact and complete the 
evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related 
rules to determine the financial impact are published. 

Note 67: Initial Public Offering ("IPO") 

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding Company has filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus ('DRHP') with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), and 
an application for In-principle approval from BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") in connection with proposed Initial Public Offering 
("IPO") of its equity shares. The Holding Company has received observation letter dated December 08, 2021 from SEBI, which is valid for 12 months. The Holding Company 
has also received In-principle approval from BSE & NSE on August 30, 2021 & September 08, 2021 respectively. 

Note 68 : Events occurring after the reporting period 

There are no significant events subsequent to year ended March 31, 2022. 

Note 69 : Authorisation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 04, 2022. 
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